
Posted:  8/9/2023 3:25 PM 

 

                                                       
COUNTY LEGISLATURE 

JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 

MARY JO SPINO 
 
 

                                                                    CLERK OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE           
415 East 12th Street      201 West Lexington, 2nd Floor 
Kansas City, MO 64106                                                                                                                                 Independence, MO 64050                                                                
                                                                            
                                                        August 11, 2023 – August 17, 2023 
 

8-11-2023 Friday  NO MEETINGS – 
 

8-14-2023 Monday  NO HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT, LAND USE, PUBLIC 
WORKS, RULES, 911 OVERSIGHT, DIVERSITY, EQUITY, 
& INCLUSION, VETERANS, OR HOUSING & 
HOMELESSNESS COMMITTEE MEETINGS – 
 

 11:30 A.M. Justice & Law Enforcement Committee Meeting – 
Jackson County Courthouse, 415 East 12th Street, 
2nd Floor, Kansas City Legislative Assembly Area 
 

 11:40 A.M. Anti-Crime Committee Meeting – 
Jackson County Courthouse, 415 East 12th Street, 
2nd Floor, Kansas City Legislative Assembly Area 
 

 11:50 A.M. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting – 
Jackson County Courthouse, 415 East 12th Street, 
2nd Floor, Kansas City Legislative Assembly Area 
 

 12:05 P.M. Inter-Governmental Affairs Committee Meeting – 
Jackson County Courthouse, 415 East 12th Street, 
2nd Floor, Kansas City Legislative Assembly Area 
 

  12:20 P.M. Budget Committee Meeting –  
Jackson County Courthouse, 415 East 12th Street, 
2nd Floor, Kansas City Legislative Assembly Area 
 

  The Budget Committee will have a public  
hearing on Ordinance # 5774. 
 

  3:00 P.M. LEGISLATIVE MEETING -  
Jackson County Courthouse, 415 East 12th Street, 
2nd Floor, Kansas City Legislative Assembly Area 
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8-15-2023 Tuesday  NO MEETINGS – 
 

8-16-2023 Wednesday  NO MEETINGS – 
 

8-17-2023 Thursday  8:30 A.M. Plan Commission Meeting – 
Historic Truman Courthouse, 112 W. Lexington Ave, 
2nd Floor, Independence, MO. Large Meeting Room 
 

 10:00 A.M. Pension Plan Board of Trustees Meeting – 
Hila “Dutch” Newman Legislative Conference Room 
415 East 12th Street, 2nd Floor, Kansas City, MO 
 

  5:15 P.M. Ethics, Human Relations & Citizen Complaints 
Commission Meeting –Meeting will be held via Zoom. For 
more information contact, Anita Mackrel at 
amackrel@jacksongov.org 
 

 
 
Persons with disabilities wishing to participate in the above meetings and who require reasonable accommodation may call 
the County Clerk’s Office at 881-3242 or 1-800-735-2466 (Missouri Relay).  Forty-eight (48) hours’ notice is required. To 
put information on the Activity Calendar, please contact the County Clerk’s Office by NOON Wednesday of each week. 

 

mailto:amackrel@jacksongov.org


IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 10.00± acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RR (Residential Ranchette). 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5775, August 14, 2023 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RR” (Residential Ranchette) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District 

AG to District RR a tract of land located at 12924 S. Al Gossett Road in Jackson County, 

MO, legally described as follows: 

Description: A tract of land described in Document number 2016E0085200, Jackson County 
Missouri, being part of the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 16,  
Township 47, Range 29, in Jackson County, Missouri, more particularly described as  
follows: Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section  
16; thence North 88 degrees 30 minutes 45 seconds West, along the South line of the  
Southeast quarter of the Southeast quarter, a distance of 1351.42 feet, to the Southeast  
corner of the Southwest quarter of the Southeast Quarter; thence North 02 degrees 15 
minutes 42 seconds East, along the East line of said Quarter Quarter, a distance of  
508.86 feet (509.86 feet deed), to the point of beginning; thence North 87 degrees 42 
minutes 19 seconds West (South 89 degrees 43 minutes 47 seconds West deed), being  
parallel with the south line of said Quarter Quarter, a distance of 1349.93 feet, to a point  
on the West line of said Quarter Quarter; thence North 02 degrees 20 minutes 01 
seconds East (North 00 degrees 08 minutes 28 seconds West deed), along said West  
line, a distance of 330.52 feet; thence south 87 degrees 42 minutes 19 seconds east  
(North 89 degrees 43 minutes 47 seconds East deed), being parallel with said south line  
of said Quarter Quarter, a distance of 1349.51 feet, to a point on said East line of said  
Quarter Quarter; thence South 02 degrees 15 minutes 42 seconds West (South 00 
degrees 18 minutes 15 seconds East deed), along said east line, a distance of 330.52  
feet, to the point of beginning 
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Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Zachary & Brooke Schorr (RZ-

2023-651), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that 

the Jackson County Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 20, 2023, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative 

power pertaining to planning and zoning. 
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Effective Date: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its signature by the 
County Executive. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached ordinance, Ordinance No. 5775 introduced on 
August 14, 2023, was duly passed on _____________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
  Yeas _______________  Nays ______________ 
 
 
  Abstaining ___________  Absent ____________ 
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the County Executive for his signature. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
I hereby approve the attached Ordinance No. 5775. 
 
 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Date       Frank White, Jr., County Executive 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,022 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5775 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

RZ-2023-651 – Zachary & Brooke Schorr 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 10.00 ± acres to District RR (Residential 
Ranchette). The purpose is to create two residential lots at 12924 S. Al Gossett Road. 

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 20, 2023, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. There was no opposition to the request. 
The Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/25/2023 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Administrator Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ordinance No.: 5775
Date: August 14, 2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,022 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Zoning change 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,022 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/25/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 7/25/2023 2:23:18 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/25/2023 3:24:56 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Jaime Guillen on 7/25/2023 4:26:05 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 7/26/2023 9:17:05 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Troy Schulte on 7/26/2023 10:56:56 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:27:56 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2023-651 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
A tract of land described in Document number 2016E0085200, Jackson County 
Missouri,  being part of the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 16, 
Township 47, Range 29, in Jackson County, Missouri, more particularly described as 
follows: Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 
16; thence North 88 degrees 30 minutes 45 seconds West, along the South line of the 
Southeast quarter of the Southeast quarter, a distance of 1351.42 feet, to the Southeast 
corner of the Southwest quarter of the Southeast Quarter; thence North 02 degrees 15 
minutes 42 seconds East, along the East line of said Quarter Quarter, a distance of 
508.86 feet (509.86 feet deed), to the point of beginning; thence North 87 degrees 42 
minutes 19 seconds West (South 89 degrees 43 minutes 47 seconds West deed), being 
parallel with the south line of said Quarter Quarter, a distance of 1349.93 feet, to a point 
on the West line of said Quarter Quarter; thence North 02 degrees 20 minutes 01 
seconds East (North 00 degrees 08 minutes 28 seconds West deed), along said West 
line, a distance of 330.52 feet; thence south 87 degrees 42 minutes 19 seconds east 
(North 89 degrees 43 minutes 47 seconds East deed), being parallel with said south line 
of said Quarter Quarter, a distance of 1349.51 feet, to a point on said East line of said 
Quarter Quarter; thence South 02 degrees 15 minutes 42 seconds West  (South 00 
degrees 18 minutes 15 seconds East deed), along said east line, a distance of 330.52 
feet, to the point of beginning. 



RZ-2023-651 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 20, 2023 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names and addresses of surrounding property owners 
Letter to surrounding property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Preliminary Plat – Schorr Acres 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2023-651 
 
Applicant:   Zachary & Brooke Schorr 

 
Location: 12924 S. Al Gossett Road 
  

Area: 10.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RR 

(Residential Ranchette)  
   
Purpose:      The purpose is to create two single family residential lots. 
 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The zoning in the area is Agricultural. There are similar zonings in the 
area. Smaller lots were established prior to the adoption of the Unified 
Development Code in 1995. 
 
The land use is single family residences on similar size or larger tracts. 
 
The applicant is wishing to divide the acreage into two lots. One lot will 
contain the existing residence.   
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Rural Development Tier (RDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2023-651. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Mr. Antey: What is the size of both lots? 
 
Mr. Diehl: They are both about 5 acres.  
 
Mr. Antey: Are there any other questions for Randy? 
 
Mr. Crawford: What is this? (indicating on map) 
 
Mr. Diehl: That is a RV that’s parked on the property. To the north is the existing 
residence.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Zach Schorr, 12924 S. Al Gossett Road 
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Schorr: No. 
 
Mr. Farrar: The one lot has someone living on it? 
 
Mr. Schorr: Yes. I have a contract for the whole 10 acres. We are buying the back 5 
acres first so we can build our new house. The house on the other 5 acres will be tore 
down later.  
 
Mr. Lake: So, the entire 10 acres will be yours? 
 
Mr. Schorr: Yes. We are just purchasing 5 acres at a time. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
Cheryl Heltzel: 12919 S. Al Gossett Road. There is an existing house with someone 
living on it. There is a couple of RVs and another building under construction. I’m 
questioning septic and water. How is it being divided.  
 
Mr. Diehl: Here is the proposed layout and the existing house (indicating on map). 
 
Mr. Tarpley: That home will be torn down eventually.  
 
Ms. Heltzel: I’m concerned about the lady living there if something is going to happen to 
her. I know she is being taken care of by one of the applicants.   
I wonder about perc tests.  
 
Mr. Antey: Perc test or soil tests are required to be performed before a building permit 
for a dwelling can be issued.  
 
 



Ms.Heltzel: I’m just trying to understand it all. There is a building under construction.  
 
Mr. Antey: We’ll talk to the applicant about that.  
 
Applicant recalled:  
 
Mr. Schorr: We are buying the back 5 acres first because of the arrangement with the 
occupant of the house. She gets to live there until she passes, moved or whatever.  
The building under construction is on the front 5 acres.  
 
 
Mr. Diehl: That structure is permitted. 
 
Mr. Antey: 10 acres tracts allow two dwellings.   
 
Mr. Diehl: Yes, a main dwelling and a secondary dwelling are allowed. The existing 
home meets the criteria as the accessory. When it is razed, that leaves the building 
under construction as the main home.  
 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 

Mr. Tarpley moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
 

Mr. Lake moved to approve. Mr. Tarpley seconded. 
 

Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   6 – 0  
 























IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 

AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 6.75± acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RE (Residential Estates) and rezoning a certain 12.07± acre tract from District 
RE (Residential Estates) to District AG (Agricultural). 

ORDINANCE NO. 5776, August 14, 2023 

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RE” (Residential Estates) Districts, so that portions will be transferred from District 

AG to District RE and District RE to District AG of two tracts of land legally described as 

follows: 

Lot 1A, Flamingo Acres Replat, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri 

Tract B, Flamingo Acres Replat, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri 

Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of the James & Gina Stuelke Trust 

(RZ-2023-653), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice 

that the Jackson County Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 20, 2023, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative 

power pertaining to planning and zoning. 
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Effective Date: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its signature by the 
County Executive. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________   
County Counselor 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached ordinance, Ordinance No. 5776 introduced on 
August 14, 2023, was duly passed on _____________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
  Yeas _______________  Nays ______________ 
 
 
  Abstaining ___________  Absent ____________ 
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the County Executive for his signature. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
I hereby approve the attached Ordinance No. 5776. 
 
 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Date       Frank White, Jr., County Executive 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,023 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5776 

Sponsor(s): Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

RZ-2023-653 – James & Gina Stuelke Living Trust 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 6.75 ± acres to District RE (Residential 
Estates) and a change of zoning from District RE (Residential Estates) on 12.07 ± acres to District AG 
(Agricultural). The purpose is to configure the residential zoning surrounding the existing residence to 
match the proposed new lot layout and configure the agricultural zoning to match the remaining 
property at 23700 E. Colbern Road. 

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 20, 2023, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. There was no opposition to the request. 
The Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/26/2023 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Administrator Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ordinance No.: 5776 
Date:  August 14, 2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,023 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Contract is for real property 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,023 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/26/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 7/26/2023 11:00:59 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/26/2023 11:05:14 AM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Ikeela Alford on 7/26/2023 11:27:06 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 7/26/2023 11:33:43 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 7/26/2023 11:39:31 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:28:46 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2023-653 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
Lot 1A, Flamingo Acres Replat, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri. 
 
Tract B, Flamingo Acres Replat, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri. 



RZ-2023-653 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 20, 2023 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names and addresses of surrounding property owners 
Letter to surrounding property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Flamingo Acres Replat 



Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2023-653 
 
Applicant:   James & Gina Stuelke Trust 

 
Location: 23700 E. Colbern Road 
  

Area: 19.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 6.75 ± 

acres to District RE (Residential Estates) and a change of zoning from 
District RE (Residential Estates) on 12.07 ± acres to District AG 
(Agricultural). 

  
   
Purpose:      The purpose is to configure the residential zoning surrounding the 

existing residence to match the proposed new lot layout and configure the 
agricultural zoning to match the remaining property. 

 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The zoning in the area is predominately Agricultural. Development around 
the subject property was developed prior to the adoption of the Unified 
Development Code in 1995.  
 
Land use is single family residences. Across Colbern Road is the City of 
Lee’s Summit Legacy Park.  
 
The owner is wishing to reconfigure the lot containing the residence by 
adding additional property to the east to encompass the barn and ponds 
within its boundaries. A portion of the existing residence lot with be 
absorbed back into the larger 12-acre tract. This tract will remain zoned 
as Agricultural since it is over 10 acres in size. The applicant is wishing to 
have the zonings match the new plat configuration.  
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Urban Development Tier (UDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2023-653. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
Mr. Tarpley: Why are they doing this? 
 
Mr. Diehl: They are selling the house and the potential buyer wants the additional 
property. They replatting the lots and the zoning should match the new layout. We want 
to avoid a split zoning.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Don Roberts, 15905 E 78th Street. I represent the owner. The owners put the property up 
for sale last year. They have a buyer and a contract. The buyer requested the extension. 
They want the barn and the ponds. It’s a simple as that. The contact is contingent on the 
rezoning.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
There were none. 
 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 

Mr. Tarpley moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
 

Mr. Lake moved to approve. Mr. Tarpley seconded. 
 

Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   6 – 0  
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RLS-2134, MO.
SET 1/2" REBAR AND CAP

- FOUND MONUMENT (AS NOTED)

U/E - UTILITY EASEMENT

   JAMES B. & GINA L. STUELKE
  23700 NE COLBERN ROAD
  LEE'S SUMMIT, MO. 64086

PROJECT NO. ______________22-247

23700 NE COLBERN ROAD, LEE'S SUMMIT, MO.

DATE: MAY 30, 2023

SHEET 1 OF 1

BOUNDARY & CONSTRUCTION
    SURVEYING, INC.
821 NE COLUMBUS STREET SUITE 100, LEE'S SUMMIT, MO. 64063

PH.# 816/554-9798, FAX # 816/554-0337
roger@boundarysurvey.net

1. PROPERTY CONTAINS 18.82 ACRES MORE OR LESS.
2. CLASS OF SURVEY IS SUBURBAN.
3. ADDRESS TO SUBJECT PROPERTY IS 23700 NE COLBERN ROAD, LEE'S SUMMIT, MO. 64086.
4. PARENT TRACT OF LAND AS RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO.'S : 2019E0022408 AND 2022E0044273.

THE BASIS OF BEARING FOR THIS SURVEY ARE GRID BEARINGS.

PART OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY LIES IN AN AREA LABELED ZONE "X" (AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE OF
THE 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN) AS DETERMINED BY THE FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NUMBER 29095C0435G
WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF JANUARY 20, 2017.

NO TITLE WORK WAS FURNISHED, MAY BE EASEMENTS OR OTHER RECORDS NOT SHOWN HEREON.

ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 48
NORTH, RANGE 31 WEST. IN JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI, AND BEING MORE FULLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 48,
RANGE 31, IN JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION, SOUTH
87 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, 334.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 25 SECONDS
EAST, 40.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST,
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF COLBORN & CYCLONE ROAD ESTATES, A SUBDIVISION IN JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI,
FOR A DISTANCE OF 1242.29 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF J. MORGAN MEADOWS, A SUBDIVISION IN JACKSON
COUNTY, MISSOURI; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION, SOUTH 87 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 10
SECONDS EAST, 660.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF LOT 10 OF COLBORN & CYCLONE ROAD ESTATES
2ND PLAT, A SUBDIVISION IN JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION,
SOUTH 02 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 25 SECONDS WEST 1242.81 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE
OF COLBERN ROAD; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID COLBERN ROAD, NORTH 87 DEGREES 44 MINUTES
29 SECONDS WEST, 660.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. PREPARED MARCH 2, 2023 BY ROGER A. BACKUES,
PLS-2134.

THE UNDERSIGNED PROPRIETOR OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED TRACT HAS CAUSED THE SAME TO BE  SUBDIVIDED
IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, WHICH SUBDIVISION AND PLAT SHALL HEREAFTER BE
KNOWN AS  "FLAMINGO ACRES REPLAT".

AN EASEMENT OR LICENSE IS HEREBY GRANTED TO JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI, TO LOCATE, CONSTRUCT AND
MAINTAIN OR AUTHORIZE LOCATION, CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE AND USE OF CONDUITS FOR ALL OR ANY
PURPOSE, WATER, GAS, SEWER MAINS, POLES AND WIRES OR ALL OR ANY OF THEM, OVER, UNDER AND ALONG
THE STRIPS OF LAND MARKED "UTILITY EASEMENT" OR "U/E.". P.D.E. = PERMANENT DRAINAGE EASEMENT W.E. =
WATER EASEMENT
1. WHERE AN EASEMENT IS DESIGNATED FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, THAT IS "SEWER EASEMENT", "DRAINAGE
EASEMENT (D.E.)" OR "UTILITY EASEMENT (U/E)", THE USE THEREOF SHALL BE RESTRICTED TO THAT PURPOSE.
2. ALL EASEMENTS SHALL BE KEPT FREE AND CLEAR OF ANY AND ALL BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES OR OTHER
OBSTRUCTIONS (EXCEPT DRIVEWAYS, PAVED AREAS, GRASS, SHRUBS AND FENCES) WHICH WOULD INTERFERE
WITH (A) THE PROPER SAFE AND CONTINUOUS USE AND MAINTENANCE OR RECONSTRUCTION OF THE FACILITIES
LOCATED WITHIN SAID EASEMENTS, (B) THE AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI AND ITS
FRANCHISED UTILITIES FROM GOING UPON SAID EASEMENTS IN THE EXERCISING OF THE RIGHTS GRANTED BY
SAID EASEMENT.

BUILDING LINES OR SETBACK LINES ARE SHOWN HEREON.

STREETS SHOWN HEREON AND NOT HERETOFORE DEDICATED FOR PUBLIC USE AS STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY ARE
HEREBY DEDICATED.

THE UNDERSIGNED PROPRIETORS HAS CAUSED THESE PRESENTS TO BE EXECUTED THIS      DAY OF              ,
2023

THE STUELKE LIVING TRUST DATED APRIL 01, 2019

JAMES B. STUELKE, JR., TRUSTEE                             GINA L. STUELKE, TRUSTEE

STATE OF MISSOURI)
                                         ) SS
COUNTY OF JACKSON)

ON THIS         DAY OF                      , 2023, BEFORE ME APPEARED JAMES B. STUELKE, JR. AND GINA L. STUELKE,
TRUSTEES OF THE STUELKE LIVING TRUST DATED APRIL 01, 2019, TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN TO BE THE SAME
PERSON WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT OF WRITING AND THAT SAID INSTRUMENT TO BE THEIR
FREE ACT AND DEED OF SAID PERSON AND DULY ACKNOWLEDGED THE EXECUTION OF THE SAME.

I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY NOTARIAL SEAL IN MY OFFICE THE DAY AND YEAR LAST
WRITTEN ABOVE.

____________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC:

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: _____________________________

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                     DATE:______________________

JACKSON COUNTY ASSESSMENT DEPARTMENT         DATE: ______________________

       1 METER     = 3.28083333'
  ALL COORDINATES AND ALL BEARINGS
AS SHOWN IN THE TRAVERSE TABLE ARE
BASED ON "MISSOURI COORDINATE
SYSTEM OF 1983, WEST ZONE" "JA-149
GPS STATION" USING A COMBINED GRID
FACTOR OF 0.9999035

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE WITHIN PLAT OF "FLAMINGO ACRES REPLAT", A SUBDIVISION IS BASED ON
AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE BY ME OR UNDER  MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT SURVEY MEETS OR
EXCEEDS THE "CURRENT MISSOURI MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY BOUNDARY SURVEYS". I
FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE BEARINGS SHOWN IN THE TRAVERSE TABLE ARE GRID BEARINGS, BASED ON
THE STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM OF MISSOURI, WESTERN ZONE OF THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM
OF 1983; THAT THE SECTION AND SECTIONAL SUBDIVISION CORNER MONUMENTS AND SURVEY
BOUNDARY CORNER MONUMENTS WERE EITHER FOUND OR SET AS INDICTED ON THIS PLAT; THAT THE
LOT CORNERS AND STREET CENTER LINES HAVE BEEN MARKED WITH PERMANENT MONUMENTATION AS
INDICATED ON THIS PLAT; THAT I HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL STATE AND JACKSON COUNTY STATUTES,
ORDINANCES, AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE PRACTICE OF SURVEYING AND THE PLATTING OF
SUBDIVISIONS TO BE BEST OF MY PROFESSIONAL KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF.

SURVEYOR: ROGER A BACKUES PLS NO. 2134

FINAL PLAT
FLAMINGO ACRES REPLAT
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IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 7.00± acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RR (Residential Ranchette). 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5777, August 14, 2023 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RR” (Residential Ranchette) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District 

AG to District RR a tract of land located at 12600 S. Harris Road in Jackson County, MO, 

legally described as follows: 

Description: The Ease seven (7) acres, more or less of the following described tract: 
A part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 13, Township 47, Range 31, Jackson County, Missouri, 
described as follows: Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 
13; thence North 87 degrees 20 minutes 58 seconds West, along the South line of said Northeast 
Quarter, 1338.48 feet to a point at the Southeast corner of the West 10 acres as described in 
Document No. 2006E0110200; thence North 02 degrees 14 minutes 31 seconds East, along the 
East line of said 10 acres, 329.81 feet; thence South 87 degrees 20 minutes 58 seconds East, 
8.90 feet to a point on the West line of the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 13; thence continue South 87 degrees 20 minutes 58 seconds East, 1328.90 feet to a 
point on the East line of the Northeast Quarter of Section 13, also being the centerline of Harris 
Road; thence South 02 degrees 07 minutes 23 seconds West, along said lines, 329.82 feet the 
the point of beginning. Except that part in road. (Also know as Tract A, as shown on Certificate of 
Survey recorded in Document 2018E0031291 on April 13, 2018). 
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Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Peter Kenney (RZ-2023-654), 

requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the Jackson 

County Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this application after 

a public hearing on July 20, 2023, does hereby adopt this Ordinance pursuant to the 

Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative power 

pertaining to planning and zoning. 
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Effective Date: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its signature by the 
County Executive. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached ordinance, Ordinance No. 5777 introduced on 
August 14, 2023, was duly passed on _____________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
  Yeas _______________  Nays ______________ 
 
 
  Abstaining ___________  Absent ____________ 
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the County Executive for his signature. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
I hereby approve the attached Ordinance No. 5777. 
 
 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Date       Frank White, Jr., County Executive 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,027 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5777 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

RZ-2023-654 – Peter Kenney 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 7.00 ± acres to District RR (Residential 
Ranchette). The purpose is to create a residential lot at 12600 S. Harris Road. 
Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 20, 2023, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. There was no opposition to the request. 
The Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/26/2023 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Administrator Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ord. #5777
Date: August 14, 2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,027 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Zoning change 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

  

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,027 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/26/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 7/27/2023 11:05:04 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/27/2023 11:17:08 AM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Jaime Guillen on 7/27/2023 1:04:36 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 7/27/2023 1:14:36 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 7/27/2023 1:39:20 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:30:20 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2023-654 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
The East seven (7) acres, more or less, of the following described tract:  
 
A part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 13, Township 47, Range 31, Jackson County, 
Missouri, described as follows: Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 13; thence North 87 degrees 20 minutes 58 seconds West, 
along the South line of said Northeast Quarter, 1338.48 feet to a point at the Southeast 
corner of the West 10 acres as described in Document No. 2006E0110200; thence 
North 02 degrees 14 minutes 31 seconds East, along the East line of said 10 acres, 
329.81 feet; thence South 87 degrees 20 minutes 58 seconds East, 8.90 feet to a point 
on the West line of the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 13; 
thence continue South 87 degrees 20 minutes 58 seconds East, 1328.90 feet to a point 
on the East line of the Northeast Quarter of Section 13, also being the centerline of 
Harris Road; thence South 02 degrees 07 minutes 23 seconds West, along said lines, 
329.82 feet the the point of beginning. Except that part in road.  
(Also know as Tract A, as shown on Certificate of Survey recorded in Document 
2018E0031291 on April 13, 2018). 



RZ-2023-654 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 20, 2023 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names and addresses of surrounding property owners 
Letter to surrounding property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 



STAFF REPORT  
 
PLAN COMMISSION 
May 18, 2023 
 
RE:  RZ-2023-654 
 
Applicant:   Peter Kenney 

 
Location: 12600 S. Harris Road 
  
Area: 7.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RR 

(Residential Ranchette)  
   
Purpose:      The purpose is to create a single-family residential lot. 
 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The zoning in the area is Agricultural, Residential Estates and Residential 
Ranchette.   
 
The land use is single family residences on similar size or larger tracts. 
There are some smaller size developments created prior to the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).  
 
The applicant owns 2 10-acre tracts and is constructing a new residence 
on the north 10-acre tract. They are wishing to attach the west 2.45 acres 
of the south tract to the north tract. The remaining 7.00 ± acres which 
contain the current residence will need to be rezoned and platted to bring 
it back into compliance with the UDC.  
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Urban Development Tier (UDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2023-654. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 



 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
There were none. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Peter Kenney, 12600 S. Harris Road. 
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Kenney: We bought this property in 2018. My wife has several horses. The pond is 
on the backside of the south 10 acres. We want to keep the pond with us and this is the 
area we can spread manure. We are almost finished with the new house. Once we move 
in we’ll place the other on the market.   
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
There were none. 
 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 

Mr. Crawford moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
 

Mr. Crawford moved to approve. Mr. Tarpley seconded. 
 

Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   6 – 0  
 



STAFF REPORT  
 
PLAN COMMISSION 
May 18, 2023 
 
RE:  RZ-2023-654 
 
Applicant:   Peter Kenney 

 
Location: 12600 S. Harris Road 
  
Area: 7.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RR 

(Residential Ranchette)  
   
Purpose:      The purpose is to create a single-family residential lot. 
 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The zoning in the area is Agricultural, Residential Estates and Residential 
Ranchette.   
 
The land use is single family residences on similar size or larger tracts. 
There are some smaller size developments created prior to the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).  
 
The applicant owns 2 10-acre tracts and is constructing a new residence 
on the north 10-acre tract. They are wishing to attach the west 2.45 acres 
of the south tract to the north tract. The remaining 7.00 ± acres which 
contain the current residence will need to be rezoned and platted to bring 
it back into compliance with the UDC.  
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Urban Development Tier (UDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2023-654. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 
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IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE renewing a conditional use permit (CUP) in District AG (Agricultural) 
for a period of fifty years to operate a 190-foot communication tower and facility, as to a 
106.00 + acre tract. 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5778, August 14, 2023 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1.  A conditional use permit is hereby renewed for a period of fifty years to 

operate a 190-foot communication tower and facility, as to an approximate 106.00 + 

acre tract of land in District AG (Agricultural), commonly known as 31710 E. Oakland 

School Road in Jackson County, Missouri, legally described as follows: 

Description: A 10,353 square foot lease area situated in the Southeast Quarter of 
Section 13, Township 49, Range 30, Jackson County, Missouri, more particularly 
described as follows: Commencing at the South Quarter Corner of said Section 3; 
thence along the South line of said Southeast Quarter, South 88 degrees 34 minutes 53 
seconds East, a distance of 849.86 feet; thence leaving said South line, North 00 
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East, a distance of 1928.02 feet to the Point of 
Beginning, thence North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 107.06 
feet; thence North 04 degrees 02 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 100.25 feet; 
thence North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East, a distance of 100.00 feet; thence 
South 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East to the Point of Beginning. 

 
Section 2.  The conditional use permit renewed by this Ordinance is subject to 

the following conditions: 

1. The commercial communication lattice tower shall not exceed a height of 

190 feet as measured from ground level. 

2. The lattice tower and appurtenance shall be installed according to 

manufacturer's specifications using sound engineering and safety 

practices. 
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3. The lattice tower shall be galvanized finish or painted gray or light blue 

unless other standards are required by the Federal Aviation Agency. 

4. The lattice tower shall only be illuminated if required by the Federal 

Communication Commission and/or the Federal Aviation Agency. 

5. Any antenna or tower that is not operated for a continuous period of 

twelve (12) months shall be considered abandoned and the owner of such 

antenna/tower or property owner shall remove the antenna or tower within 

90 days. 

 

Section 3.  The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Network Real Estate (CU-

2023-247), requesting approval embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the 

Jackson County Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application in a public hearing on July 20, 2023, does adopt this Ordinance pursuant to 

the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative power 

pertaining to planning and zoning. 
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Effective Date:  This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its signature by the 
County Executive. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
____________________________   
County Counselor 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached ordinance, Ordinance No. 5778 introduced on 
August 14, 2023, was duly passed on _____________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature.  The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
 Yeas _______________   Nays ______________ 
 
 
 Abstaining ___________   Absent ____________ 
 
 
 
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the County Executive for his signature. 
 
 
________________________   ________________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
I hereby approve the attached Ordinance No. 5778. 
 
 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Date       Frank White, Jr., County Executive 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,029 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5778 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

CU-2023-247 – Network Real Estate 

Request Summary 

Requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a period of 50 years for a 190-foot communication tower and 
facility in a 10,000 square foot on 106.00 ± acres in District AG (Agricultural) at 31710 E. Oakland School 
Road.  
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 20, 2023, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the Condition Use request. The was no opposition to the request. 
The Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature for a 50 
year  period provided certain conditions are met. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/27/2023 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Adminitrator Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ord. #5778
Date: August 14, 2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,029 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: not spending money 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,029 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/27/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 7/27/2023 3:43:39 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/27/2023 4:06:13 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Ikeela Alford on 7/27/2023 4:42:15 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 7/28/2023 7:41:36 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 7/28/2023 1:01:15 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:31:36 PM. Comments: 
 

 



CU-2023-247 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
A 10,353 square foot lease area situated in the Southeast Quarter of Section 13, 
Township 49, Range 30, Jackson County, Missouri, more particularly described as 
follows: Commencing at the South Quarter Corner of said Section 3; thence along the 
South line of said Southeast Quarter, South 88 degrees 34 minutes 53 seconds East, a 
distance of 849.86 feet; thence leaving said South line, North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 
seconds East, a distance of 1928.02 feet to the Point of Beginning, thence North 90 
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 107.06 feet; thence North 04 
degrees 02 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 100.25 feet; thence North 90 
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East, a distance of 100.00 feet; thence South 00 
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East to the Point of Beginning. 



CU-2023-247 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 20, 2023 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Application 
Aerial of Property 
Site Plan and Tower Elevation 
 
  
 

 



CU-2023-247 
 
ATTACHMENT 3: LIST OF CONDITIONS 
 
Condition Use Permit for a period of 50 (Fifty) years with the following Conditions: 
 

 
1. The commercial communication lattice tower shall not exceed a 

height of 190 feet as measured from ground level. 
 

2. The lattice tower and appurtenance shall be installed according to 
manufacturer's specifications using sound engineering and safety 
practices. 

 
3. The lattice tower shall be galvanized finish or painted gray or  

light blue unless other standards are required by the Federal 
Aviation Agency. 
 

4. The lattice tower shall only be illuminated if required by the  
Federal Communication Commission and/or the Federal Aviation 
Agency. 
 

5. Any antenna or tower that is not operated for a continuous  
period of twelve (12) months shall be considered abandoned and 
the owner of such antenna/tower or property owner shall remove 
the antenna or tower within 90 days. 

 
 
 

 



Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  CU-2023-247 
 
Applicant: Network Real Estate  
  
Location: 31710 E. Oakland School Road 
 
Area: 100’ x 100’ site area (Subject property is 106.00 acres)  
 
Request: 190-foot communication tower and facility  
 
Zoning Classification:   District AG (Agricultural)     
   
 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 
 

The surrounding land is agricultural and vacant ground. The subject 
property is surrounded by mostly larger tracts with single family dwellings.  

   
County Plan: 
 

                         The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Suburban Development Tier (SDT).    

 
 
Comments / Recommendation: 
 

Section 24005.20 of the Unified Development Code, Telecommunication 
Towers and Antennas provides guidelines for the location and 
development of Commercial Communication towers.   
A Conditional Use Permit is required for a commercial antenna in District 
AG (Agricultural) when the above ground level height of the tower 
exceeds 75 feet.  The applicant proposes a 190-foot self-support lattice 
tower.  
 
The UDC requires a fall zone setback to be a distance equal to or greater 
than one-half (1/2) the height of the tower from a property line.  Since the 
tower has a height of 190 feet, the fall zone setback is 95 feet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CU-2023-247 for a period of fifty (50) years       
subject to the following conditions: 

 
 
 

1. The commercial communication lattice tower shall not exceed a 
height of 190 feet as measured from ground level. 

 
2. The lattice tower and appurtenance shall be installed according to 

manufacturer's specifications using sound engineering and safety 
practices. 

 
3. The lattice tower shall be galvanized finish or painted gray or 

light blue unless other standards are required by the Federal 
Aviation Agency. 
 

4. The lattice tower shall only be illuminated if required by the 
Federal Communication Commission and/or the Federal Aviation 
Agency. 
 

5. Any antenna or tower that is not operated for a continuous 
period of twelve (12) months shall be considered abandoned and 
the owner of such antenna/tower or property owner shall remove 
the antenna or tower within 90 days. 

 

            

      
Respectfully submitted, 

            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mr. Antey: If I remember, there were some changes in the State Statutes regarding what 
jurisdictions could not impose on cell tower sites.  
 
Mr. Diehl: Term limits, camouflaging and requiring trees around the perimeter of the 
lease area are some of those. Terms could be set up by the applicant to correspond with 
a lease agreement. We try to mirror those statues.  
 
Mr. Antey: Are there any other questions for Randy? 
 
There were none. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Glen Klocke, 5055 Hwy N, Cottleville, MO. I represent AT&T for this tower.   
 
Mr. Antey: do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Klocke: This is a three-legged tower. Everything associated with this tower will be 
fenced in with a chain link fence. We share the entry at the road with the property owner. 
It will split off to a 12-foot access road to the tower. The tower will be gray. They are not 
required to be painted any longer. Once we get approval from the jurisdiction, we will get 
final approval from the FAA. They will make the decision if lighting is required. This is 
designed to improve coverage in this area. It will also be designed to allow two other 
carriers on it.  
 
Ms. Ryerkerk: Will there be interference will other carriers? 
 
Mr. Kocke: No. The FCC dictates the band width are each carrier.  
 
Mr. Lake: What will be the coverage area? 
 
Mr. Kocke: It will allow coverage for about an eight to ten mile radius.  
 
Mr. Farrar: What about maintenance? 
 
Mr. Kocke: Within the lease area, AT&T hires out for that. The compound itself will be 
graveled. They don’t want anything overgrowing into the area. If there is a fence down, 
they usually have someone out there. They don’t want anybody accessing the 
compound. There will also be a gate on the driveway for safety reasons as well.   
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
There were none. 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 

Mr. Tarpley moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 

Mr. Tarpley moved to approve. Ms. Ryerkerk seconded. 
 

Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   6 – 0  
 

 





























IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 5.00± acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RR (Residential Ranchette). 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5779, August 14, 2023 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RR” (Residential Ranchette) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District 

AG to District RR a tract of land located at 36400 block of Church Road in Jackson 

County, MO, legally described as follows: 

Description: A tract of land in the Northeast Quarter of Section 7, Township 48, Range 29, 
Jackson County, Missouri, being part of Tract B, Certificate of Survey 2011E0037524, described 
as follows: Commencing at the Center of said Section 7; thence North 02 degrees 02 minutes 57 
seconds East, along the West line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 7, a distance of 15.00 
to the North right of way line of Church Road, as established in County Court Book Book 56 at 
Page 568; thence South 87 degrees 43 minutes 04 seconds East, along said right of way, a 
distance of 49.03 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence North 02 degrees 02 minutes 57 seconds 
East, a distance of 764.92 feet to a point of the North boundary of said Tract B; thence South 87 
degrees 58 minutes 26 seconds West, a distance of 294.25 feet to the Northeast corner of said 
Tract B; thence South 02 degrees 02 minutes 57 seconds West, a distance of 766.23 feet to the 
Southeast corner of said Tract b; thence North 87 degrees 43 minutes 04 seconds West, along 
the north right of way line of Church Road, a distance of 294.25 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
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Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of James Mauder Trust (RZ-2023-

655), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the 

Jackson County Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 20, 2023, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative 

power pertaining to planning and zoning. 
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Effective Date: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its signature by the 
County Executive. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached ordinance, Ordinance No. 5779 introduced on 
August 14, 2023, was duly passed on _____________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
  Yeas _______________  Nays ______________ 
 
 
  Abstaining ___________  Absent ____________ 
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the County Executive for his signature. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
I hereby approve the attached Ordinance No. 5779. 
 
 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Date       Frank White, Jr., County Executive 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,028 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5779 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

RZ-2023-655 – James Mauder Trust 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 5.00 ± acres to District RR (Residential 
Ranchette). The purpose is to create a residential lot at the 36400 block of Church Road. 
Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 20, 2023, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. There was no opposition to the request. 
The Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/26/2023 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Administrator Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ord. #5779
Date: August 14, 2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,028 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Contract is for real property 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,028 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/26/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 7/27/2023 2:51:58 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/27/2023 2:56:49 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Ikeela Alford on 7/27/2023 4:55:41 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 7/28/2023 7:45:03 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 7/28/2023 1:01:47 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:32:45 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2023-655 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
A tact of land in the Northeast Quarter of Section 7, Township 48, Range 29, Jackson 
County, Missouri, being part of Tract B, Certificate of Survey 2011E0037524, described 
as follows: Commencing at the Center of said Section 7; thence North 02 degrees 02 
minutes 57 seconds East, along the West line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 7, 
a distance of 15.00 to the North right of way line of Church Road, as established in 
County Court Book Book 56 at Page 568; thence South 87 degrees 43 minutes 04 
seconds East, along said right of way, a distance of 49.03 feet to the Point of Beginning; 
thence North 02 degrees 02 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 764.92 feet to a 
point of the North boundary of said Tract B; thence South 87 degrees 58 minutes 26 
seconds West, a distance of 294.25 feet to the Northeast corner of said Tract B; thence 
South 02 degrees 02 minutes 57 seconds West, a distance of 766.23 feet to the 
Southeast corner of said Tract b; thence North 87 degrees 43 minutes 04 seconds West, 
along the north right of way line of Church Road, a distance of 294.25 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. 



RZ-2023-654 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 20, 2023 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names and addresses of surrounding property owners 
Letter to surrounding property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Preliminary Plat – Sunny Acres 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2023-655 
 
Applicant:   James Mauder Trust 

 
Location: 36400 block of Church Road 
  

Area: 5.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RR 

(Residential Ranchette)  
   
Purpose:      The purpose is to create a single family residential lot. 
 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The zoning in the area is Agricultural.  
 
The land use is single family residences on similar size or larger tracts. 
 
The applicant is wishing to create a 5-acre lot out of their 30 acres for a 
future dwelling.   
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Suburban Development Tier (SDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2023-655. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
There were none. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
James Mauer: 7005 S. Stillhouse Road. 
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Mauer: I do not have any to add. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
There were none. 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 

Mr. Lake moved to take under advisement. Mr. Tarpley seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
Mr. Lake: Don’t have a problem with this since he is my neighbor. He’s talked to me and 
the other neighbors as well.  
 

Mr. Tarpley moved to approve. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 

Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   6 – 0  
 























IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 3.00± acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RE (Residential Estates). 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5780, August 14, 2023 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RE” (Residential Estates) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District AG 

to District RE a tract of land located at 34007 E. Pink Hill Road in Jackson County, MO, 

legally described as follows: 

Description: Beginning at a point 495 feet West of the Northeast corner of the Northwest Quarter 
of the Northwest Quarter of Section 24, Township 49, Range 30; Thence South 1324.98 feet to 
the South line of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter; Thence West 840.97 feet to the 
East line of Section 23, Township 49, Range 30; Thence North 1324.62 feet to the Northwest 
corner of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of section 24; Thence East 840.45 feet 
to the point of beginning, except the east 10.568 acres thereof, in Jackson County, Missouri. Less 
that part taken or used for road purposes. 
 
 
 
Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Thomas & Cassie Montgomery 

(RZ-2023-650), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice 

that the Jackson County Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 20, 2023, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative 

power pertaining to planning and zoning. 
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Effective Date: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its signature by the 
County Executive. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached ordinance, Ordinance No. 5780 introduced on 
August 14, 2023, was duly passed on _____________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
  Yeas _______________  Nays ______________ 
 
 
  Abstaining ___________  Absent ____________ 
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the County Executive for his signature. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
I hereby approve the attached Ordinance No. 5780. 
 
 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Date       Frank White, Jr., County Executive 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,031 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5780 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

RZ-2023-650 – Thomas & Cassie Montgomery 

Request Summary 

NOTE:  This is a resubmission of erla 1021, due to technical issue 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 3.00 ± acres to District RE (Residential 
Estates). The purpose is to create two residential lots at 34007 E. Pink Hill Road. 
Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 20, 2023, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. There was no opposition to the request. 
The Plan Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/28/2023 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Administrator Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ordinance No.: 5780
August 14, 2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,031 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: zoning change 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,031 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/28/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 7/28/2023 1:25:38 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/31/2023 9:06:38 AM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Jaime Guillen on 7/31/2023 10:06:20 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 7/31/2023 10:18:41 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 7/31/2023 10:44:31 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:33:34 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2023-650 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
Beginning at a point 495 feet West of the Northeast corner of the Northwest Quarter of 
the Northwest Quarter of Section 24, Township 49, Range 30; Thence South 1324.98 
feet to the South line of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter; Thence West 
840.97 feet to the East line of Section 23, Township 49, Range 30; Thence North 
1324.62 feet to the Northwest corner of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter 
of section 24; Thence East 840.45 feet to the point of beginning, except the east 10.568 
acres thereof, in Jackson County, Missouri. Less that part taken or used for road 
purposes.  
 



RZ-2023-650 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 20, 2023 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names and addresses of surrounding property owners 
Letter to surrounding property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Preliminary Plat 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2023-650 
 
Applicant:   Thomas & Cassie Montgomery 

 
Location: 34007 E. Pink Hill Road 
  

Area: 3.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RE 

(Residential Estates)  
   
Purpose:      The purpose is to create two single family residential lots. 
 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The zoning in the area is Agricultural.  
 
The land use is single family residences on similar size or larger tracts. 
Bellechasse is an older development directly across the road.  
 
The applicant wishes to divide the acreage into two lots. This will allow 
construction of a new dwelling on Lot 1. Tract A will contain the existing 
residence and will remain within District AG. 
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Urban Development Tier (UDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2023-650. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
There were none. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Thomas Montgomery: 34007 E. Pink Hill Road. 
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Montgomery: No.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
There were none. 
 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 

Mr. Tarpley moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
 

Mr. Lake moved to approve. Mr. Tarpley seconded. 
 

Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   6 – 0  
 























IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 10.00± acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RE (Residential Estates). 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5781, August 14, 2023 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RE” (Residential Estates) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District AG 

to District RE a tract of land located at 24209 E. Outer Belt Road in Jackson County, MO, 

legally described as follows: 

Description: Commencing at the Northeast corner of the East Half of the Northeast Quarter of 
said Section 35; thence South 00 degrees 06 minutes 45 seconds West, along the East line of 
said East Half of the Northeast Quarter, a distance of 30.01 feet to a point; thence North 89 
degrees 53 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 25.00 feet to the point of beginning, said 
point being on the West right of way line of Smart Road as now established; thence South 00 
degrees 06 minutes 45 seconds West, along said West right of way line 25.00 West of and parallel 
to the East line of said Northeast Quarter, a distance of 960.13feet to a point on a common 
boundary line as established in the boundary line agreement recorded as Document No. I-539935 
in book I-1251 at page 64; thence South 89 degrees 48 minutes 17 seconds West along said line 
a distance of 370.00 feet to a point; thence North 00 degrees 11 minutes 43 seconds West a 
distance of 478.00 feet to a point; thence North 64 degrees 04 minutes 36 seconds West a 
distance 211.40 feet to point; thence North 00 degrees 35 minutes 21 seconds West a distance 
325.00 feet to a point on the South right of way line Route B (150 Highway) as established in 
Document No. I-31088 in book 89 page 587; thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 39 seconds 
East along said South right of way a distance of 30.00 feet to a point; thence North 62 degrees 
06 minutes 43 minutes 59 seconds East along said South right of way a distance of 140.39 feet 
to o point of curvature; thence easterly along said right of way line on a curve to the right having 
an initial tangent bearing of North 89 degrees 43 minutes 59 seconds East, a radius of 34347.50 
feet, a central angle of 00 degrees 22 minutes 41 seconds and an arc length of 226.60 feet to a 
point, thence South 89 degrees 53 minutes 21 seconds East along said South right of way line, a 
distance of 1486.22 feet to the point of beginning.    
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Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Paul & Dawn Riffe (RZ-2023-

652), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the 

Jackson County Plan Commission voted 5 to 1 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 20, 2023, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative 

power pertaining to planning and zoning. 
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Effective Date: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its signature by the 
County Executive. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached ordinance, Ordinance No. 5781 introduced on 
August 14, 2023, was duly passed on _____________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
  Yeas _______________  Nays ______________ 
 
 
  Abstaining ___________  Absent ____________ 
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the County Executive for his signature. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
I hereby approve the attached Ordinance No. 5781. 
 
 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Date       Frank White, Jr., County Executive 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,032 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5781 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

RZ-2023-652 – Paul & Dawn Riffe 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 10.00 ± acres to District RE (Residential 
Estates). The purpose is to create two residential lots at 24209 E. Outer Belt Road. 

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 20, 2023, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. There were five letters submitted in opposition to this request.   
The Plan Commission voted 5 to 1 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/28/2023 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Administrator Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ord. 5781
Date: August 14, 2023
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Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: zoning change 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
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History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/28/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 7/28/2023 3:12:32 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/31/2023 9:05:08 AM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Jaime Guillen on 7/31/2023 10:07:44 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 7/31/2023 10:19:23 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 7/31/2023 10:53:41 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:34:28 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2023-652 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
Part of the East Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 35, Township 47, Range 31, 
Jackson County, Missouri, more particularly described as follows:  
 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of the East Half of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 35; thence South 00 degrees 06 minutes 45 seconds West, along the East line 
of said East Half of the Northeast Quarter, a distance of 30.01 feet to a point; thence 
North 89 degrees 53 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 25.00 feet to the point of 
beginning, said point being on the West right of way line of Smart Road as now 
established; thence South 00 degrees 06 minutes 45 seconds West, along said West 
right of way line 25.00 West of and parallel to the East line of said Northeast Quarter, a 
distance of 960.13feet to a point on a common boundary line as established in the 
boundary line agreement recorded as Document No. I-539935 in book I-1251 at page 
64; thence South 89 degrees 48 minutes 17 seconds West along said line a distance of 
370.00 feet to a point; thence North 00 degrees 11 minutes 43 seconds West a distance 
of 478.00 feet to a point; thence North 64 degrees 04 minutes 36 seconds West a 
distance 211.40 feet to point; thence North 00 degrees 35 minutes 21 seconds West a 
distance 325.00 feet to a point on the South right of way line Route B (150 Highway) as 
established in Document No. I-31088 in book 89 page 587; thence North 89 degrees 24 
minutes 39 seconds East along said South right of way a distance of 30.00 feet to a 
point; thence North 62 degrees 06 minutes 43 minutes 59 seconds East along said 
South right of way a distance of 140.39 feet to o point of curvature; thence easterly along 
said right of way line on a curve to the right having an initial tangent bearing of North 89 
degrees 43 minutes 59 seconds East, a radius of 34347.50 feet, a central angle of 00 
degrees 22 minutes 41 seconds and an arc length of 226.60 feet to a point, thence 
South 89 degrees 53 minutes 21 seconds East along said South right of way line, a 
distance of 1486.22 feet to the point of beginning.   



RZ-2023-652 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 20, 2023 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names and addresses of surrounding property owners 
Letter to surrounding property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Certificate of Survey 2015E0062314 







































IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE setting forth guidelines for citizen initiative, referendum, and recall 
petitions as referenced under Article XIV of the Jackson County Charter. 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5782, August 14, 2023 
 
INTRODUCED BY Manuel Abarca IV, County Legislator 
 

 

WHEREAS, Article XIV, Section 1 of the Jackson County Charter states: The people 

reserve the power to propose and enact all ordinances independent of the County 

Legislature by initiative, to approve or reject ordinances of the County Legislature by 

referendum and to recall an elective county officer; and, 

  

WHEREAS, Article II, Section 16(5) of the Jackson County Charter states, in part:  The 

County Legislature shall have the power, pursuant to and in conformity with the 

constitution, and without limiting the generality of the powers vested in the County 

Legislature by this charter, to make such rules and regulations as may be necessary or 

proper to establish and carry into effect the provisions of this charter; and, 

 

WHEREAS, due to recent inquiries to the local election officials, the County Clerk, and 

the County Counselor, it is recommended that certain guidelines be established to clarify 

procedures for citizens to propose such petitions in compliance with the County Charter 

and the Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri; now therefore, 

  



 

2 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri that the 

Legislature hereby sets out the following guidelines related to citizen initiative, 

referendums, and recall petitions: 

1. Such petitions shall include the words "State of Missouri, County of Jackson" at 

the top of each page. 

 

2. Pursuant to Article XIV, Section 3, Jackson County Charter, petitions shall contain 

an enacting clause to read: "Be it enacted by the people of Jackson County." 

 

3. Pursuant to section 116.080 RSMo., petitions shall contain a circulator's affidavit 

with the circulator's notarized signature on each page of the petition. 

 

4. Such petitions shall provide adequate space for ten (10) signatures, and include 

the signers' printed name, and address, including house number, street name, city, 

and zip code. 

 

5. Pursuant to Article XIV, Section 7, Jackson County Charter, petitions demanding 

the recall of any elected county officer shall be signed by registered voters equal 

in number to at least twenty percent of the total vote cast for County Executive, in 

the district or county, in the last election in which a County Executive was elected. 

 

6. Pursuant to Article XIV, Section 8, Jackson County Charter, all petitions 

referred shall be filed with the offices or officers charged with conducting elections 

within the county, which shall be the judge of their sufficiency. 

 

7. Pursuant to Article XIV, Section 9, Jackson County Charter, initiative, and 

referendum issues shall be submitted to the voters at the next regular election held 

within ninety days after the petitions are filed, or if there is no regular election within 

such time, a special election shall be held within sixty days after the petitions are 

filed. A special election shall be held to consider recall of a county elected officer 

within sixty days after the petitions are filed.  



 

3 
 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri that 

if no legal election date is available within sixty days the election will occur at the next 

available election after certification of the Petition. 
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Effective Date: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its signature by the 
County Executive. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached ordinance, Ordinance No. 5782 introduced on 
August 14, 2023, was duly passed on _____________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
  Yeas _______________  Nays ______________ 
 
 
  Abstaining ___________  Absent ____________ 
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the County Executive for his signature. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
I hereby approve the attached Ordinance No. 5782. 
 
 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Date       Frank White, Jr., County Executive 
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Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5782 

Sponsor(s): Manuel Abarca IV Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

A RESOLUTION setting forth guidelines for citizen initiative, referendum, and recall petitions as 
referenced under Article XIV of the Jackson County Charter. 

Request Summary 

WHEREAS, Article XIV, Section 1 of the Jackson County Charter states: The people reserve the power to 
propose and enact all ordinances independent of the County Legislature by initiative, to approve or 
reject ordinances of the County Legislature by referendum and to recall an elective county officer; and, 

WHEREAS, Article II, Section 16(5) of the Jackson County Charter states, in part:  The County Legislature 
shall have the power, pursuant to and in conformity with the constitution, and without limiting the 
generality of the powers vested in the County Legislature by this charter, to make such rules and 
regulations as may be necessary or proper to establish and carry into effect the provisions of this 
charter; and, 

WHEREAS, due to recent inquiries to the local election officials, the County Clerk, and the County 
Counselor, it is recommended that certain guidelines be established to clarify procedures for citizens to 
propose such petitions in compliance with the County Charter and the Revised Statutes of the State of 
Missouri; now therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri that the Legislature hereby sets 
out the following guidelines related to citizen initiative, referendums, and recall petitions: 
1. Such petitions shall include the words "State of Missouri, County of Jackson" at the top of each page.
2. Pursuant to Article XIV, Section 3, Jackson County Charter, petitions shall contain an enacting clause
to read: "Be it enacted by the people of Jackson County."
3. Pursuant to section 116.080 RSMo., petitions shall contain a circulator's affidavit with the circulator's
notarized signature on each page of the petition.
4. Such petitions shall provide adequate space for ten (10) signatures, and include the signers' printed
name, and address, including house number, street name, city, and zip code.
5. Pursuant to Article XIV, Sections 7, Jackson County Charter, petitions demanding the recall of any
elected county officer shall be signed by registered voters equal in number to at least twenty percent of
the total vote cast for County Executive, in the district or county, in the last election in which a County
Executive was elected.
6. Pursuant to Article XIV, Section 8, Jackson County Charter, all petitions referred shall be filed with the
offices or officers charged with conducting elections within the county, which shall be the judge of their
sufficiency.

Ord. #5782
Sponsor: Manuel Abarca IV
Date: August 14, 2023
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7. Pursuant to Article XIV, Section 9, Jackson County Charter, initiative, and referendum issues shall be
submitted to the voters at the next regular election held within ninety days after the petitions are filed,
or if there is no regular election within such time, a special election shall be held within sixty days after
the petitions are filed. A special election shall be held to consider recall of a county elected officer
within sixty days after the petitions are filed.

Contact Information 

Department: Clerk of Legislature Submitted Date: 8/7/2023 

Name: Tedi Rowland Email: trowland@jacksongov.org 

Title: Deputy County Clerk Phone: 816-881-3246

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification: 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 
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Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: not spending money 

MBE:   .00% 

WBE:   .00% 

VBE:   .00% 

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable 

Fiscal Information 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,040 Page 4 of 4 

History 

Submitted by Clerk of Legislature requestor: Tedi Rowland on 8/7/2023. Comments: Prepare for August 
14, 2023 Agenda. Manuel Abarca IV, sponsor. - THR 

Returned for more information by Department Approver Mary Jo Spino on 8/7/2023 12:17:15 PM. 
Comments:  mjs 

Submitted by Requestor Tedi H. Rowland on 8/7/2023 12:19:46 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Department Approver Mary Jo Spino on 8/7/2023 12:32:39 PM. Comments:  mjs 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/7/2023 12:38:54 PM. 
Comments: 

Approved by Compliance Office Approver Ikeela Alford on 8/7/2023 1:17:35 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 8/7/2023 1:29:34 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/8/2023 1:45:17 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:35:07 PM. Comments: 



 IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
 
A RESOLUTION awarding twenty-four-month term and supply contracts with one 
twelve-month option to extend for the furnishing of turf chemicals for use by the Parks + 
Rec Department to Van Diest Supply Company of Webster City, Iowa, Advanced Turf 
Solutions of Fishers, Indiana, and SiteOne Landscape Supply of Cleveland, Ohio, under 
the terms and conditions of Invitation to Bid No. 23-047. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21364, August 14, 2023 
 
INTRODUCED BY Jeanie Lauer, County Legislator 
 

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance and Purchasing has solicited bids on Invitation to 

Bid No. 23-047 for the furnishing of turf chemicals for use by the Parks + Rec 

Department to provide for departmental needs; and, 

 

WHEREAS, a total of twenty-four notifications were distributed and five responses were 

received; and,  

 

WHEREAS, following evaluation of the bids submitted, the Director of Finance and 

Purchasing recommends that the contract be divided and awarded to the vendors 

submitting the lowest bid for each item; and, 

 

WHEREAS, award as recommended would result in awards to the following:  

 

 

 

 



 

 

-2- 

VENDORS 
 

Van Diest Supply Company 
Webster, IA 

 
Advanced Turf Solutions 

Fishers, IN 
 

SiteOne Landscape Supply 
Cleveland, OH 

 
and, 

 

WHEREAS, this award is made on an as needed basis and does not obligate Jackson 

County to pay any specific amount, with the availability of funds for specific purchases 

subject to annual appropriation; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that the award be made as recommended by the Director of Finance 

and Purchasing, and that the Director be, and hereby is, authorized to execute for the 

County any documents necessary to the accomplishment of the award; and, 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Director of Finance and Purchasing be and 

hereby is authorized to make all payments, including final payment, on the contracts to 

the extent that sufficient appropriations to the using spending agencies are available in 

the then current Jackson County budget. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

-3- 

Effective Date:  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by a 
majority of the Legislature. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
Certificate of Passage 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached resolution, Resolution No. 21364 of August 14, 
2023, was duly passed on ____________________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature.  The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
 Yeas _______________   Nays ______________ 
 
 
 Abstaining _________   Absent ____________ 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________   ____________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
 
This award is made on a need basis and does not obligate Jackson County to pay any 
specific amount.  The availability of funds for specific purchases is subject to annual 
appropriations.  
 
 
 
________________________   ____________________________ 
Date       Chief Administrative Officer 
 

Sylvya Stevenson (Aug 10, 2023 11:43 CDT)
08/10/2023
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Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Resolution Res.Ord No.: 21364 

Sponsor(s): Jeanie Lauer Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Award'] 

Project/Title: 

Awarding a Twenty-four (24) Month Term and Supply Contract with One (1) Twelve Month Option to 
Extend for the furnishing of Turf Chemicals and Fertilizers for use by the Parks + Rec Department under 
the terms and conditions of Invitation to Bid No. 23-047. 

Request Summary 

The Parks + Rec Department requires a Term and Supply Contract for the furnishing of Turf Chemicals 
and Fertilizers. The Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid No. 23-047 in response to those 
requirements. A total of 430 notifications were distributed, 24 viewed and five responses were received 
and evaluated. An Executive Summary of the Invitation to Bid, including the Contractor's Quotation 
Sheet and the using County Department’s Recommendation Memo is attached. 

Pursuant to Section 1054.6 of the Jackson County Code, the Purchasing Department and the Parks + Rec 
Department recommend the award of a Twenty-four (24) Month Term and Supply Contract with One (1) 
Twelve (12) Month Option to Extend for the furnishing of Turf Chemicals and Fertilizers for use by the 
Parks + Rec Department to be split between Van Diest Supply Company of Webster City, Iowa, Advanced 
Turf Solutions of Fishers, Indiana, and SiteOne Landscape Supply of Cleveland, Ohio as the lowest and 
best bids under the terms and conditions of Invitation to Bid No. 23-047. 

Annual Estimated Usage: $80,000. 

This award is made on a “As Needed” basis and does not obligate Jackson County to pay any specific 
amount. The availability of funds for specific purchase(s) is subject to annual appropriations. 

Contact Information 

Department: Parks + Rec Submitted Date: 7/31/2023 

Name: Brian Nowotny Email: BPNowotny@jacksongov.org 

Title: Deputy Director, Parks + Rec Phone: 816-503-4803

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Res. #21364
Sponsor: Jeanie Lauer
Date: August 14, 2023
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Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $     

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

   !Unexpected End of 
Formula 

 

 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

19507 June 12, 2017 

19932 August 6, 2018 

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

Yes 

Chapter 10 Justification: Formal Bid 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: Not Applicable 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: Yes 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Yes 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

In Compliance 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals are waived - insufficient MBE or WBE firms available 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This award is made on a need basis and does not obligate Jackson County to pay any specific 
amount.  The availability of funds for specific purchases will, of necessity, be determined as each 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,034 Page 3 of 3 
 

using agency places its order. 
 

 

History 

Submitted by Parks + Rec requestor: Brian Nowotny on 7/31/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Michele Newman on 8/1/2023 12:30:05 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/1/2023 1:12:12 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Jaime Guillen on 8/1/2023 1:49:01 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 8/1/2023 1:58:10 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/1/2023 2:03:18 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:23:21 PM. Comments: 
 

 



JACKSON COUNTY 
Parks + Rec 
 
22807 Woods Chapel Road Michele Newman, Director 
Blue Springs, Missouri 64015 (816) 503-4800 
MakeYourDayHere.com Fax: (816) 795-1234 
 

 
Frank White, Jr., County Executive 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

TO:           John Konon, Buyer 
 
FROM:       John Johnson, Superintendent-Park Operations 
 
DATE:        July 25, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Bid 23-047: Turf Chemicals  
 
The Parks Department’s recommendation is to award the bid to the following 
companies: 
 

Van Diest Supply Company 
Site One Landscape 
Advanced Turf Solutions 

 
Collectively, these three vendors were the lowest bids out of the five companies 
that were reviewed for the products used most frequently by the Parks + Rec 
Department.  
 
Parks + Rec’s needs from this T&S contract vary greatly, e.g. Arbanas Golf 
Course, Adair/Frank White Jr. Sports Complex and Natural Resources have 
specific different chemical needs, in addition to the needs that they do share. Using 
the three vendors allows Park’s staff to use the vendor with lowest price while 
helping ensure products are available in a time of need.  
 
Our projected usage during the next twelve months is $ 80,000. 
 
 

 
       



23-047 - Turf Chemicals
Van Diest Supply Company

Scoring Summary
Evaluation Group 1 - Main Evaluation

A - Purchasing Evaluation A-1 - Affidavit A-2 - Addenda A-3 - Certificate of 
Compliance

A-4 - Greater KC 
Metro Area Memo

A-5 - Statement of 
Contractor's 

Qualifications

A-6 - Term and 
Supply Contract 

Page

A-7 - Exhibit F - 
Exceptions

A-8 - Attachment 1 - 
Bidder's Quotation 

Sheet
Reviewer / 0 pts Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail

John Konon 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Average: Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass
↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓

Calculated: 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Evaluation Group 2 - Department Evaluation

Total B - Department Evaluation B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions
B-2 - Statement of 

Contractor's 
Qualifications

Reviewer / 40 pts / 40 pts / 10 pts / 30 pts

John Johnson 34 34 9 25

Average: 9 25
↓ ↓

Calculated: 34 34 9 25

Evaluation Group 3 - Pricing Evaluation

Total C - Pricing C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's 
Quotation Sheet

Reviewer / 60 pts / 60 pts / 60 pts

John Johnson 55 55 55

Average: 55
↓

Calculated: 55 55 55

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
Page 1 of 15



Scoring Comments
A-1 - Affidavit - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-2 - Addenda - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-3 - Certificate of Compliance - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-4 - Greater KC Metro Area Memo - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Great response!

A-5 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-6 - Term and Supply Contract Page - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) $750.00 minimum order charge

A-7 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
Page 2 of 15



John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-8 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 9 Other Noted appropriate substitutions 
for bid items.

B-2 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 25 Meets or exceeds my 
expectations

Provided good references and 
pertinent contracts, currently used 
by Arbanas Golf Course and Park 

Operations, excellent quality of 
chemicals and service.

C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 55 Meets or exceeds my 
expectations

Van Diest is low price on many of 
the chemicals that Parks uses.

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
Page 3 of 15



23-047 - Turf Chemicals
SiteOne Landscape Supply

Scoring Summary
Evaluation Group 1 - Main Evaluation

A - Purchasing Evaluation A-1 - Affidavit A-2 - Addenda A-3 - Certificate of 
Compliance

A-4 - Greater KC 
Metro Area Memo

A-5 - Statement of 
Contractor's 

Qualifications

A-6 - Term and 
Supply Contract 

Page

A-7 - Exhibit F - 
Exceptions

A-8 - Attachment 1 - 
Bidder's Quotation 

Sheet
Reviewer / 0 pts Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail

John Konon 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Average: Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass
↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓

Calculated: 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Evaluation Group 2 - Department Evaluation

Total B - Department Evaluation B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions
B-2 - Statement of 

Contractor's 
Qualifications

Reviewer / 40 pts / 40 pts / 10 pts / 30 pts

John Johnson 34 34 9 25

Average: 9 25
↓ ↓

Calculated: 34 34 9 25

Evaluation Group 3 - Pricing Evaluation

Total C - Pricing C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's 
Quotation Sheet

Reviewer / 60 pts / 60 pts / 60 pts

John Johnson 50 50 50

Average: 50
↓

Calculated: 50 50 50

Scoring Comments
A-1 - Affidavit - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-2 - Addenda - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
Page 4 of 15



John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-3 - Certificate of Compliance - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-4 - Greater KC Metro Area Memo - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Corrected memo received

A-5 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-6 - Term and Supply Contract Page - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-7 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-8 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s)

At shop locations vendor stated 
"Please see attached but there 
was no attachment - amended 

attachment is their local location 
listing

B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 9 Meets or exceeds my 
expectations No exceptions listed.

B-2 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 25 Strongly fits desired attribute(s)
Vendor currently used by 

Arbanas Golf Course, excellent 
service and pricing.

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
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C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 50 Strongly fits desired attribute(s)
Site One is low on many of the 
chemicals used specifically for 

Arbanas Golf Course.

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
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23-047 - Turf Chemicals
Advanced Turf Solutions

Scoring Summary
Evaluation Group 1 - Main Evaluation

A - Purchasing Evaluation A-1 - Affidavit A-2 - Addenda A-3 - Certificate of 
Compliance

A-4 - Greater KC 
Metro Area Memo

A-5 - Statement of 
Contractor's 

Qualifications

A-6 - Term and 
Supply Contract 

Page

A-7 - Exhibit F - 
Exceptions

A-8 - Attachment 1 - 
Bidder's Quotation 

Sheet
Reviewer / 0 pts Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail

John Konon 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Average: Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass
↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓

Calculated: 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Evaluation Group 2 - Department Evaluation

Total B - Department Evaluation B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions
B-2 - Statement of 

Contractor's 
Qualifications

Reviewer / 40 pts / 40 pts / 10 pts / 30 pts

John Johnson 34 34 9 25

Average: 9 25
↓ ↓

Calculated: 34 34 9 25

Evaluation Group 3 - Pricing Evaluation

Total C - Pricing C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's 
Quotation Sheet

Reviewer / 60 pts / 60 pts / 60 pts

John Johnson 50 50 50

Average: 50
↓

Calculated: 50 50 50

Scoring Comments
A-1 - Affidavit - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Amended - everything now is 
filled out completely.

A-2 - Addenda - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
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John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s)
No Addenda issued however, the 
acknowledged receiving addenda 

n. 1?

A-3 - Certificate of Compliance - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s)
returned our certificate of 

compliance notice I had to go to 
the portal to confirm

A-4 - Greater KC Metro Area Memo - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Amended

A-5 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-6 - Term and Supply Contract Page - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Amended

A-7 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Many exceptions - included (14) 
labels?

A-8 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 9 Meets or exceeds my 
expectations Listed substitutions.

B-2 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 25 Meets or exceeds my 
expectations

Used by Recreation Division, 
good service and products. 

Listed pertinent other contracts.

C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
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Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 50 Strongly fits desired attribute(s)

Advanced has best pricing for 
chemicals used specifically by 
Recreation division for sports 

complexes.

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
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23-047 - Turf Chemicals
GRASS PAD INC

Scoring Summary
Evaluation Group 1 - Main Evaluation

A - Purchasing Evaluation A-1 - Affidavit A-2 - Addenda A-3 - Certificate of 
Compliance

A-4 - Greater KC 
Metro Area Memo

A-5 - Statement of 
Contractor's 

Qualifications

A-6 - Term and 
Supply Contract 

Page

A-7 - Exhibit F - 
Exceptions

A-8 - Attachment 1 - 
Bidder's Quotation 

Sheet
Reviewer / 0 pts Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail

John Konon 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Average: Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass
↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓

Calculated: 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Evaluation Group 2 - Department Evaluation

Total B - Department Evaluation B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions
B-2 - Statement of 

Contractor's 
Qualifications

Reviewer / 40 pts / 40 pts / 10 pts / 30 pts

John Johnson 28 28 8 20

Average: 8 20
↓ ↓

Calculated: 28 28 8 20

Evaluation Group 3 - Pricing Evaluation

Total C - Pricing C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's 
Quotation Sheet

Reviewer / 60 pts / 60 pts / 60 pts

John Johnson 30 30 30

Average: 30
↓

Calculated: 30 30 30

Scoring Comments
A-1 - Affidavit - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-2 - Addenda - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
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John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-3 - Certificate of Compliance - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-4 - Greater KC Metro Area Memo - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-5 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-6 - Term and Supply Contract Page - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) $1,000.00 minimum order charge

A-7 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Original submission was not 
signed - this one is.

A-8 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 8 Other Listed substitutions.

B-2 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 20 Other
Current vendor, limited 

availability for our needs. Listed 
pertinent.contracts.

C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
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Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 30 Partially meets my expectations
Was higher in pricing than other 
bidders in categories that Parks 

uses the most.

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
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23-047 - Turf Chemicals
Heritage Landscape Supply Group, Inc.

Scoring Summary
Evaluation Group 1 - Main Evaluation

A - Purchasing Evaluation A-1 - Affidavit A-2 - Addenda A-3 - Certificate of 
Compliance

A-4 - Greater KC 
Metro Area Memo

A-5 - Statement of 
Contractor's 

Qualifications

A-6 - Term and 
Supply Contract 

Page

A-7 - Exhibit F - 
Exceptions

A-8 - Attachment 1 - 
Bidder's Quotation 

Sheet
Reviewer / 0 pts Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail

John Konon 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Average: Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass
↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓

Calculated: 0 Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Evaluation Group 2 - Department Evaluation

Total B - Department Evaluation B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions
B-2 - Statement of 

Contractor's 
Qualifications

Reviewer / 40 pts / 40 pts / 10 pts / 30 pts

John Johnson 14 14 9 5

Average: 9 5
↓ ↓

Calculated: 14 14 9 5

Evaluation Group 3 - Pricing Evaluation

Total C - Pricing C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's 
Quotation Sheet

Reviewer / 60 pts / 60 pts / 60 pts

John Johnson 30 30 30

Average: 30
↓

Calculated: 30 30 30

Scoring Comments
A-1 - Affidavit - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-2 - Addenda - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments
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John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-3 - Certificate of Compliance - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-4 - Greater KC Metro Area Memo - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Amended

A-5 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s)
Did not provide completed 

contracts/current contracts or 
provide references

A-6 - Term and Supply Contract Page - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-7 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Pass

A-8 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Konon Pass Meets the requirement(s) Did not include Shop Locations 
or Hour of Operation

B-1 - Exhibit F - Exceptions - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 9 Meets or exceeds my 
expectations No exceptions noted.

B-2 - Statement of Contractor's Qualifications - Reviewer Scores

Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 5 Incomplete response No references/contracts or other 
information listed.

C-1 - Attachment 1 - Bidder's Quotation Sheet - Reviewer Scores

Generated on Jul 26, 2023 8:14 AM CDT - John Konon
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Reviewer Score Reason Comments

John Johnson 30 Partially meets my expectations
Heritage higher pricing in 

categories that Parks uses most 
than other bidders.
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 IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
 
A RESOLUTION awarding a contract to Shawnee F LLC d/b/a Shawnee Mission Ford, of 
Shawnee, KS for the furnishing of two 2024 Ford Transit T-350 cargo vans, for use by the 
Detention Center, under the terms and conditions for State of Missouri Contract No. 
CC231422005, an existing competitively bid government contract at a total cost to the 
County in the amount of $111,544.00. 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21365, August 14, 2023 
 
INTRODUCED BY Venessa Huskey, County Legislator 
 

WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office applied for and was awarded an American Rescue Plan 

Act (ARPA) County Jail Maintenance and Improvement grant by the Missouri Department 

of Public Safety; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Detention Center is requesting the purchase of two Ford Transit cargo 

vans for use in daily operations of transporting inmates; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Detention Center was awarded grant funding to purchase the requested 

vehicles as transportation is needed to increase public safety and inmate welfare; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance and Purchasing recommends the award of a contract 

for the furnishing of two Ford Transit Cargo Vans to Shawnee F LLC, of Shawnee KS, 

under the terms and conditions set forth in State of Missouri Contract No. CC231422005, 

an existing competitively bid government contract, at a cost to the County in the amount 

of $111,544.00; and, 
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WHEREAS, purchases under the identified fixed-price competitively bid government 

contract will be advantageous to the County due to the discounts offered to larger entities; 

now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that award be made as recommended by the Director of Finance and 

Purchasing and that the Director be and hereby is authorized to execute any documents 

necessary to the accomplishment of the award; and, 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Director of Finance and Purchasing be and hereby 

is authorized to make all payments, including final payment on the contract. 
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Effective Date:  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by a 
majority of the Legislature. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________  
County Counselor 
 
 
Certificate of Passage 
 

I hereby certify that the attached resolution, Resolution No.  21365 of August 14, 
2023, was duly passed on ____________________________, 2023 by the Jackson 
County Legislature.  The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 

Yeas _________________  Nays _____________ 
 
 

Abstaining _____________  Absent ____________ 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________     _____________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 -4- 

There is a balance otherwise unencumbered to the credit of the appropriation to which 
the expenditure is chargeable and there is a cash balance otherwise unencumbered in 
the treasury to the credit of the fund from which payment is to be made each sufficient to 
provide for the obligation herein authorized. 
 
ACCOUNT NUMBER: 010 4232 57192 
ACCOUNT TITLE:  Grant Fund 
    ARPA Jail Maint. & Improvements 
    Safety Equipment 
NOT TO EXCEED:  $111,544.00 
 
 
 
_________________   ________________________________ 
Date      Chief Administrative Officer 
 

 

Sylvya Stevenson (Aug 10, 2023 11:43 CDT)
08/10/2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,026 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Resolution Res.Ord No.: 21365 

Sponsor(s): Venessa Huskey Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

Awarding a contract to purchase two (2) 2024, Ford Transit-T-350, Cargo Vans for use by the Jackson 
County Sheriff’s Office Detention Center to Shawnee F LLC, of Shawnee, KS, under the terms and 
conditions of State of MO Contract CC231422005, an existing, competitively bid government contract in 
the amount of $55,772.00 each. 

Request Summary 

The Jackson County Sheriff's Office, Detention Center is requesting the purchase of two (2) Ford Transit, 
Cargo Vans for use in daily operations transporting inmates at a total cost of $111,544.00. The 
Detention Center was awarded grant funding to purchase the requested vehicles.  

Pursuant to Section 1030.4 of the Jackson County Code, the Jackson County Sheriff’s Office, Detention 
Center, recommends the purchase of two transit vans under the terms and conditions of State of 
Missouri Contract No. CC231422005, an existing, competitively bid government contract.  A price quote 
is attached.  

Contact Information 

Department: Corrections Submitted Date: 7/26/2023 

Name: Deloris M. Wells Email: DWells@jacksongov.org 

Title: Deputy Director of 
Administration 

Phone: 816-881-4210

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $111,544 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $111,544 

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Resolution No.:21365
Sponsor:  Venessa Huskey
Date:  August 14, 2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,026 Page 2 of 3 
 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

010 (Grant Fund) 4232 (ARPA Jail Maint & 
Impr ) 

57192 (Safety 
Equipment) 

$111,544 

 

 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

20327 December 9, 2019 

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

Yes 

Chapter 10 Justification: Fixed Price Contract 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: Yes 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: Yes 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Yes 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

In Compliance 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Contract is with another government agency 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

  

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,026 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Corrections requestor: Deloris M. Wells on 7/26/2023. Comments: Resubmitted because I 
was not able to remove original estimate. 
 
Approved by Department Approver Diana L. Knapp on 7/26/2023 7:29:19 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/27/2023 9:06:13 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Returned for more information by Compliance Office Approver Ikeela Alford on 7/27/2023 4:45:49 PM. 
Comments:  Vendor not in compliance. Instructions for vendor will be emailed to department. 
 
 
Submitted by Requestor Deloris M. Wells on 7/31/2023 1:25:07 PM. Comments:  Added updated quote 
and Certificate of Compliance. 
 
 
Approved by Department Approver Diana L. Knapp on 7/31/2023 2:14:23 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/31/2023 2:41:58 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Jaime Guillen on 7/31/2023 4:40:31 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 8/3/2023 8:31:37 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/3/2023 9:27:39 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:24:13 PM. Comments: 
 

 



PC#

Date: August 1, 2023 RES #
eRLA ID #:  1026

Org Code/Description Object Code/Description Not to Exceed

010 Grant Fund

4232 ARPA Jail Maint. & Improvements 57192 Safety Equipment 111,544$          

111,544$          

Budget Office

Fiscal Note:
This expenditure was included in the Annual Budget.

Page 1 of 1

21365

dmoyer
Approved
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IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
A RESOLUTION transferring $1,522,693.97 within the 2023 E-911 System Fund and 
authorizing the Director of Finance and Purchasing to issue a check in the amount of 
$1,522,694.00 for the replacement of the KCPD Unified Computing System to the Kansas 
City Missouri Police Department. 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21366, August 14, 2023 
 
INTRODUCED BY Sean E. Smith, County Legislator 
 
 

WHEREAS, the citizens of Jackson County have a need for the emergency 911 system 

currently operated by the Kansas City Police Department (KCPD); and, 

 

WHEREAS, the KCPD has a computer system, the KCPD Unified Computing System 

(UCS), that enables KCPD’s Communications Unit 911 CAD system; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the KCPD UCS had a recommended five-year lifespan that was purchased 

ten years ago; and, 

 

WHEREAS, there is a risk of failure to the system that could cause the shutdown of the 

Communications Unit 911 CAD system; and, 

 

WHEREAS, a failure could be detrimental and result in a potential safety risk to not only 

community members who need police response, but also to the responding officers, and 

a recent failure of the system demonstrated this weakness by requiring call takers to 

handwrite 911 requests and hand them to dispatchers for emergency response; and, 
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WHEREAS, the Kansas City Missouri Police Department (KCPD) is respectfully 

requesting funding from Jackson County for the immediate need and replacement of the 

KCPD’s Unified Computing System; and, 

 

WHEREAS, as of July 31, 2023, a total of $2,404,926.00 remains available in the FY 

2023 allocation for improvements to the County 911 System; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Jackson County has the funding available to purchase new equipment for 

the KCPD’s UCS to ensure the integrity of the 911 system; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri, that the 

following transfer be and hereby is made:  

 

DEPARTMENT/DIVISION CHARACTER/DESCRIPTION FROM TO 

E-911 System Fund 
Emergency 911 System 
031-5031 

 

56430- Telephone Utility 

 
 
$1,522,694 

 

Emergency 911 System 
031-5031 

 
56070- 
Intergovernmental Agreements
  

  
 
$1,522,694 

 
and, 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Director of Finance be and hereby is authorized to 

issue a check to the Kansas City Police Department in the amount not to exceed  

$1,522,694.00 for the replacement of the KCPD Unified Computing System. 
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Effective Date: This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by a 
majority of the Legislature. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________  
County Counselor 
 
 
Certificate of Passage  
 
 I hereby certify that the attached resolution, Resolution No. 21366 of August 14, 
2023, was duly passed on ______________________, 2023 by the Jackson County 
Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows:  
 
 
 Yeas _________________   Nays ______________  
 
 

Abstaining _____________  Absent ____________  
 
 
 
_________________________ _____________________________ 
Date Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature  
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Funds sufficient for this transfer are available from the sources indicated below. 

 
ACCOUNT NUMBER: 031 5031 56430 
ACCOUNT TITLE: E-911 System Fund 
    Emergency 911 System 
    Telephone Utility 
NOT TO EXCEED: $1,522,694.00 
 
 
There is a balance otherwise unencumbered to the credit of the appropriation to which 
the expenditure is chargeable and there is a cash balance otherwise unencumbered in 
the treasury to the credit of the fund from which payment is to be made each sufficient to 
provide for the obligation herein authorized. 
 
 
ACCOUNT NUMBER: 031 5031 56070 
ACCOUNT TITLE: E-911 System Fund 
    Emergency 911 System 
    Intergovernmental Agreements 
NOT TO EXCEED: $1,522,694.00 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ ________________________________ 
Date Chief Administrative Officer 

Sylvya Stevenson (Aug 10, 2023 11:43 CDT)

08/10/2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,036 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Resolution Res.Ord No.: 21366 

Sponsor(s): Sean E. Smith Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize', 'Transfer'] 

Project/Title: 

Authorizing the Director of Finance to make a payment to the Kansas City Police Department in the 
amount of $1,522,693.97 from appropriated 911 funds for the purpose of replacing servers critical to 
the operation of the 911 system in Kansas City, Missouri 

Request Summary 

This resolution requests the authorization for the Director of Finance to reimburse the Kansas City Police 
Department up to $1,522,694 to replace the KCPD Unified Computing System (UCS).  The KCPD UCS was 
purchased approximately 10 years ago with a manufacturer recommended 5-year life span. The UCS, 
which is now at full capacity, has long surpassed the recommended replacement period and is beginning 
to fail intermittently. The UCS houses all the "blade servers" and "virtual servers" on the KCPD network, 
to include the Communications Unit Hexagon CAD virtual server. If the USC were to fail, it would cause 
the shutdown of the Communications Unit 911 CAD system. This shutdown could be detrimental and 
result in a potential safety risk to not only community members who need police response, but to the 
responding officers, as well.  A recent failure of the system required call takers to handwrite 911 
requests and hand them to dispatchers for emergency response. 

KCPD received quotes for the UCS replacement and would like to proceed with the option provided by 
CISCO through Converge One due to lower cost and current server adaptability. The total project cost 
was quoted at $1,522,693.97. This cost cannot be absorbed by KCPD's annual budget and therefore was 
requested through the City of Kansas City, however they refused to fund this need. 

As of July 31, 2023, a total of $2,404,926 remains available in the FY 2023 allocation for improvements 
to the County 911 System, 

Contact Information 

Department: County Executive Office Submitted Date: 8/2/2023 

Name: Troy Schulte Email: TSchulte@jacksongov.org 

Title: County Administrator Phone: 816-881-1079

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $1,522,694 

Res. #21366
Sponsor: Sean E. Smith
Date: August 14, 2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,036 Page 2 of 3 
 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $1,522,694 

Is it transferring fund? Yes 

Transferring Fund From: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

031 (E-911 System 
Fund) 

5031 (Emergency 911 
System) 

56430 (Telephone 
Utility) 

$1,522,694 

 

Transferring Fund To: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

031 (E-911 System 
Fund) 

5031 (Emergency 911 
System) 

56070 
(Intergovernmental 
Agreements) 

$1,522,694 

 

 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

Yes 

Chapter 10 Justification: Purchase from Another Government 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: Not Applicable 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: Not Applicable 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Yes 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Contract is with another government agency 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,036 Page 3 of 3 
 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 Funds sufficient for this appropriation and/or transfer are available from the source indicated on 
the budget information tab. 
 

 

History 

Submitted by County Executive Office requestor: Troy Schulte on 8/2/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/2/2023 10:27:50 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Returned for more information by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/2/2023 
12:08:22 PM. Comments:  In the Request Summary: first sentence, Unified is misspelled 
 
 
Submitted by Requestor Troy Schulte on 8/2/2023 1:21:25 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Department Approver Troy Schulte on 8/2/2023 1:24:47 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/2/2023 3:50:42 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Melinda K. Bolling on 8/2/2023 4:01:36 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 8/3/2023 11:04:57 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/3/2023 11:16:14 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:25:00 PM. Comments: 
 

 



PC#

Date: August 3, 2023 RES #
eRLA ID #: 1036

Org Code/Description Object Code/Description From To

031 E-911 System Fund

5031 Emergency 911 System 56430 Telephone Utility 1,522,694$   -$  

5031 Emergency 911 System 56070 Intergovernmental Agreements 1,522,694     

1,522,694$   1,522,694$   

PC#

Org Code/Description Object Code/Description

031 E-911 System Fund

5031 Emergency 911 System 56070 Intergovernmental Agreements 1,522,694$   

1,522,694$   

Budget Office

Not to Exceed

Fiscal Note:
 Funds sufficient for this transfer are available from the sources indicated below. 

503123001 000

Fiscal Note:
This expenditure was included in the Annual Budget

Page 1 of 1

21366

dmoyer
Approved











IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
A RESOLUTION recognizing University Academy student Pearl Ralls, who recently 
completed an internship in the office of County Legislator Donna Peyton.  
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21367, August 14, 2023 
 
INTRODUCED BY Donna Peyton, County Legislator 
 
 
WHEREAS, Pearl Ralls, a student at University Academy, a Kansas City, Missouri 

Charter Preparatory School, served as a Legislative intern during the 2023 summer 

session, and,  

  

WHEREAS, Pearl, born on May 5, 2007, in Kansas City, Missouri, has shown an 

unwavering passion for making a positive impact in her community from a young age; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, Pearl is the daughter of Roderick and Cardelia Ralls, who have instilled in 

her the values of kindness, empathy, and a strong work ethic; and, 

 

WHEREAS, at University Academy, Pearl excels academically and actively seeks 

opportunities to collaborate with peers, demonstrate leadership, and contribute to the 

school's positive atmosphere; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Pearl aspires to become a social worker, motivated by the desire to serve 

and uplift marginalized individuals and families within her community; and, 
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WHEREAS, Pearl is a volunteer at her church, assisting fellow teenagers, and 

showcasing her ability to connect with and support her peers; and, 

 

WHEREAS, during Pearl’s internship, she conducted a comprehensive review of 

houselessness programs nationwide, and identified best practices that hold the promise 

to address pressing issues within our community; and, 

 

WHEREAS, in her role, Pearl developed a list of invaluable local resources to aid the 

newly established Legislative Committee on Housing & Houselessness; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Pearl approached her internship with remarkable poise, determination, and 

persistence, displaying a commitment to accomplishing the established goals and 

furthering the mission of the County Legislature and Legislator Donna Peyton; now 

therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri, that the 

Legislature hereby honors and celebrates Pearl Ralls for her exceptional contributions, 

unwavering dedication, and remarkable achievements as an intern to County Legislator 

Donna Peyton and extends best wishes to her on all of her future endeavors. 
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Effective Date:  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by a 
majority of the Legislature. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________  
County Counselor 
 
 
Certificate of Passage 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached resolution, Resolution No. 21367 of August 14, 
2023, was duly passed on ______________________, 2023 by the Jackson County 
Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
 
 Yeas _______________   Nays ______________ 
 
 
 Abstaining _________   Absent ____________ 
 
  
 
 
________________________   ____________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 



   

 

   

 

IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
A RESOLUTION awarding twelve-month term and supply contracts, with two twelve-
month options to extend, for the furnishing of Environmental Management Services for 
use by various County departments to New Horizons of Kansas City, MO, and EcoSafe 
Environmental Services of Kansas City, MO, under the terms and conditions of Invitation 
to Bid No.23-027.  
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21368, August 14, 2023 
 
INTRODUCED BY Megan L. Marshall, County Legislator 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance and Purchasing has solicited bids on Invitation to Bid 

No. 23-027 for the furnishing of Environmental Management Services for use by various 

County departments; and, 

 

WHEREAS, a total of eleven notifications were distributed and three responses were 

received and evaluated, from the following:  

BIDDERS 

B&R Insulation 
 Lenexa, Kansas 

 
    EcoSafe Environmental Services 

 Kansas City, MO 
 

      New Horizons  
     Kansas City, MO 

 

 and, 
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WHEREAS, pursuant to section 1054.6 of the Jackson County Code, the Director of 

Finance and Purchasing recommends the award of twelve-month term and supply 

contracts, with two twelve-month options to extend to New Horizons of Kansas City, MO 

and EcoSafe Environmental Services of Kansas City, MO, as the lowest and best 

responsive bidders; and, 

 

WHEREAS, a split award is recommended to ensure continued availability and a variety 

of necessary services from multiple sources; and, 

 

WHEREAS, this award is made on an as needed basis and does not obligate Jackson 

County to pay any specific amount, with the availability of funds for specific purchases 

subject to annual appropriation; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that the award be made as recommended by the Director of Finance 

and Purchasing, and that the Director be, and hereby is, authorized to execute for the 

County any documents necessary to the accomplishment of the award; and, 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Director of Finance and Purchasing be and hereby 

is authorized to make all payments, including final payment, on the contracts to the extent 

that sufficient appropriations to the using spending agencies are available in the then 

current Jackson County budget. 
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Effective Date: This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by a 
majority of the Legislature. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________     
County Counselor 
 
 
Certificate of Passage 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached resolution, Resolution No. 21368 of August 14, 
2023, was duly passed on ________________________, 2023 by the Jackson County 
Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
  Yeas _______________  Nays ___________ 
 
 
  Abstaining ___________  Absent ____________ 
 
 
 
 
______________________    _______________________________ 
Date                Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
 
 
 
This award is made on a need basis and does not obligate Jackson County to pay any 
specific amount. The availability of funds for specific purchases is subject to annual 
appropriation.  
 
 
 
_________________________   _______________________________ 
Date       Chief Administrative Officer 
 

Sylvya Stevenson (Aug 10, 2023 11:43 CDT)
08/10/2023



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,038 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Resolution Res.Ord No.: 21368 

Sponsor(s): Megan L. Marshall Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Award'] 

Project/Title: 

Awarding a split contract for a Twelve (12) Month Term and Supply Contract with Two (2) Twelve Month 
Option to Extend for the furnishing of Environmental Management Services for use by various County 
Departments to New Horizons of Kansas City, MO and EcoSafe Environmental Services of Kansas City, 
MO under the terms and conditions of Invitation to Bid No.23-027. 

Request Summary 

Various County Departments require a Term and Supply Contract for the furnishing of Environmental 
Management Services.  The Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid No. 23-027 in response to 
those requirements. A total of 255 notifications were distributed, eleven (11) document takers with 
three (3) responses received and evaluated. An Executive Summary of the Invitation to Bid, including the 
Contractor's Quotations and the using departments Recommendation Memos are attached. Responses 
were received by: 

· B&R Insulation (Lenexa, Kansas)
· EcoSafe Environmental Services (Kansas City, MO)
· New Horizon (Kansas City, MO)

Pursuant to Section 1054.6 of the Jackson County Code, the Purchasing Department recommends a split 
award of a Twelve (12) Month Term and Supply Contract with Two (2) Twelve Month Option to Extend 
for the furnishing of Environmental Management Services to New Horizons of Kansas City, MO and 
EcoSafe Environmental Services of Kansas City, MO under the terms and conditions of Invitation to Bid 
No.23-027 as the best qualified bids received. A split award is recommended by Parks + Rec for this 
service which will allow getting work completed given the nature of the illegal dumping of hazardous 
materials in the Parks + Rec system.  

The using County Departments state an annual estimated usage of $40,000. The award is made on an 
"as needed" basis and does not obligate Jackson County to pay any specific amount.  The availability of 
funds for specific purchases is subject to annual appropriations. 

Certificate of Compliance current 

Contact Information 

Department: Finance Submitted Date: 8/3/2023 

Res. #21368
Sponsor: Megan L. Marshall
Date: August 14, 2023



Request for Legislative Action 
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Name: Keith E. Allen Email: keallen@jacksongov.org 

Title: Senior Buyer Phone: 816-881-3465 

 

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $     

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

   !Unexpected End of 
Formula 

 

 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

19867 May 21, 2018 

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

Yes 

Chapter 10 Justification: Formal Bid 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: Not Applicable 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: Yes 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Yes 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

In Compliance 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Less than $50000 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  
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Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This award is made on a need basis and does not obligate Jackson County to pay any specific 
amount.  The availability of funds for specific purchases will, of necessity, be determined as each 
using agency places its order. 
 

 

History 

Submitted by Finance requestor: Keith E. Allen on 8/3/2023. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Bob Crutsinger on 8/3/2023 5:05:17 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/4/2023 11:29:12 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Melinda K. Bolling on 8/4/2023 1:09:59 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 8/4/2023 1:17:59 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/6/2023 2:13:14 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:25:58 PM. Comments: 
 

 



JACKSON COUNTY 
Parks + Rec 
 
22807 Woods Chapel Road Michele Newman, Director 
Blue Springs, Missouri 64015 (816) 503-4800 
MakeYourDayHere.com Fax: (816) 795-1234 
 

 
Frank White, Jr., County Executive 

  
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO: Keith Allen, Senior Buyer  
 
FROM: John Johnson, Superintendent of Park Operations 
 
DATE: July 28, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Term & Supply Contract No. 23-027, Environmental Management 

Services 
 

 The Parks + Rec Department’s recommendation is to split award to 
New Horizons as the primary Environmental Management 
Services contractor and to EcoSafe Environmental as the 
secondary service provider.  

 
 New Horizons is the incumbent T&S contractor and has performed 

well when needed. They are the low bidder out of the three bids 
received. EcoSafe was second low, for the categories that Parks 
may need assistance with.  

 
 Given that illegal dumping of hazardous materials within the park 

system’s 21,000+ acres is unpredictable, having two companies 
available to perform abatement work is essential.  

 
 Both recommended contractors had good references and well-

qualified staff. 
 
 Parks + Rec projected usage during the next twelve months is 

$15,000, subject budget approval/availability. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        



JACKSON COUNTY 
Facilities Management Division 
 
Jackson County Courthouse (816) 881-3258 
415 East 12th Street, Third Floor Mezzanine Fax: (816) 881-3583 
Kansas City, Missouri 64106 
jacksongov.org 

Frank White, Jr., County Executive 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
From: Rick Gerla, Facilities Management Administrator 
 
To: Keith Allen, Senior Buyer, Purchasing Department 
 
Date: 8/1/2023 
 
Subject: Bid 23-027 – Environmental Management Services,  

 Term and Supply Contract Recommendation 
 
 
Keith, 
 
This memorandum is being prepared and submitted in response to your request for feedback 
regarding the above contract being awarded by Jackson County for Environmental Management 
Services on a Term and Supply basis.  
 
The Facilities Management Division would like to recommend New Horizons moving forward 
as the vendor who applied for this contract. New Horizons will provide a wide variety of 
services and inspections for environmental management to cover the Facilities Management 
Division’s needs.  Their competitive pricing and experience with both municipal and private 
customers around Jackson County led me to recommend them.  Annual spending for Facilities 
could be around $25,000.00. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 

 
 
Rick Gerla 
Facilities Management Administrator 
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23-027 - Environmental Management Services 

 

Project Overview 

 

Project Details  

Reference ID 23-027 

Project Name Environmental Management Services 

Project Owner Keith Allen 

Project Type ITB 

Department Facilities Management 

Budget $0.00 - $0.00 

Project Description 

Jackson County, Missouri is seeking a Twelve (12) Month Term and 
Supply Contract with Two (2) Twelve Month Options to Extend for the 
furnishing of Environmental Management  Services for use by the 
Facilities Management Division of Public Works.  

Open Date Jun 21, 2023 12:00 PM CDT 

Intent to Bid Due Jul 11, 2023 1:30 PM CDT 

Close Date Jul 11, 2023 2:00 PM CDT 

 

Highest Scoring Supplier Score 

New Horizons 91 pts 
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Seal status 

 

Requested Information Unsealed on Unsealed by 

Addenda Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 

Affidavit Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 

Certificate of Compliance Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 

Exhibit F - Exceptions Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 

References Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 

Statement of Contractor's 
Qualifications Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 

Term and Supply Contract 
Page Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 

Quotation Sheet Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 

Participation Affidavit Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 

Greater Kansas City Metro Area 
Memo Jul 11, 2023 2:08 PM CDT Keith Allen 
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Scoring Summary 

 

Active Submissions 

 

 Total A - Purchasing Score A-1 - Addenda A-2 - Affidavit A-3 - Certificate of 
Compliance 

Supplier / 100 pts / 0 pts Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

New Horizons 91 pts 0 pts Pass Pass Pass 

EcoSafe 
Environmental 

Services 
80.5 pts 0 pts Pass Pass Pass 

B&R Insulation 73.5 pts 0 pts Pass Pass Pass 

 

 A-4 - Exhibit F - 
Bidder's Exceptions 

A-5 - Statement of 
Contractor's 

Qualifications 

A-6 - Term and 
Supply Contract 

Page 

A-7 - Attachment 1 - 
Bidder's Quotation 

Sheet 

A-8 - Greater KC 
Metro Area Memo 

Supplier Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 
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 A-4 - Exhibit F - 
Bidder's Exceptions 

A-5 - Statement of 
Contractor's 

Qualifications 

A-6 - Term and 
Supply Contract 

Page 

A-7 - Attachment 1 - 
Bidder's Quotation 

Sheet 

A-8 - Greater KC 
Metro Area Memo 

Supplier Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

New Horizons Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass 

EcoSafe 
Environmental 

Services 
Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass 

B&R Insulation Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass 

 

 B - Department 
Score B-1 - References B-2 - Exhibit F - 

Bidder's Exceptions 

B-3 - Statement of 
Contractor's 

Qualifications 
C - Pricing 

Supplier / 40 pts / 10 pts / 5 pts / 25 pts / 60 pts 

New Horizons 36 pts 9.5 pts 5 pts 21.5 pts 55 pts 

EcoSafe 
Environmental 

31.5 pts 8 pts 4.5 pts 19 pts 49 pts 
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 B - Department 
Score B-1 - References B-2 - Exhibit F - 

Bidder's Exceptions 

B-3 - Statement of 
Contractor's 

Qualifications 
C - Pricing 

Supplier / 40 pts / 10 pts / 5 pts / 25 pts / 60 pts 

Services 

B&R Insulation 33.5 pts 8.5 pts 5 pts 20 pts 40 pts 

 

 
C-1 - Attachment 1 - 
Bidder's Quotation 

Sheet 

Supplier / 60 pts 

New Horizons 55 pts 

EcoSafe 
Environmental 

Services 
49 pts 

B&R Insulation 40 pts 

 



ATTACHMEN T 1 
BIDDER'S QUOTATION  SHEET 

• Straight Time: 7:00 am - 5:00 pm, Monday through Friday 

Attachment I 
Page I of4 

• Overtime: 5:01 pm - 6:59 am, Monday through Friday and all day on Saturdays 
• Premium Time: All day on Sundays or a Federally recognized legal holiday 
• Labor Rates must include all overhead expenses 

Title/Class 

Asbestos lnsnector 
Asbestos Management 

Planner 

Asbestos Project Designer 

Asbestos Supervisor 

Asbestos Worker 

(CDL) D1iver 

Eauipment Operator 

Laborer 

Project Manager 

Insulator 
Mold Management 

Planner 

Mold Proiect Designer 

Mold Sunervisor 

Mold Worker 
Lead Paint Management 

Planner 

Lead Paint Designer 

Lead Paint Suoervisor 

Lead Paint Worker 
Average Wage Rate 

(Sum of hourly wages in 
straight time column, 

divided by the number of 
straight time entries) 

Strai2ht Time Rate Overtime Rate 

$75, oo 'f I,~' s0 

$9'5. oo ,LJa,s0 

$9 s. 00 iLt~S 
loJ, "-ID - I 40, J'{, 
1,J:l, I :3Cf .J 3 
&7, 2 3 g-~_ 0 
~'-I, , t. /IS /2-
,I. f7 C/5, iJ 
9~,oo /It(,)( 

qs.uo. 
qs,oo 
~5. oO 187·50 

qs, oo Jl/1 0 
95,oo 

Premium Time Rate 

/I so , oo 
\'1O,oo 
l Cft>, DO 

_._ 
;q1s, , ).'1 

/)/. I) 
/I/J.~'7 
IL/S.S~ 
/f'f.t? 
I 'fF', 2& 

. 

1qo.0D 
l7 O, ov 



Asbestos 
Containing 
Material 

Acoustic Ceiling 
Tile 

Air Quality 
Testing/Monitoring 

Asbestos (Disposal 
Onlv) 

Asbestos Debris 

Asphalt Shingle 

Backing Paper 

Ceiling Texture 

Composite Roof 
Membrane 

Cover Base with 
Mastic 

Fire Safety Doors 

Flooring Material 
and Mastic 

Gaskets 

Glue Dots 

Lead Remediation 

Mud Jacket Fittings 

Mold Remediation 

Plaster 

Abatement and Disposal Rates 
I 

UN IT Straight Time Rate Overtime Rate 

Square J . JS- '-{ _ c,t:J 
Feet 

Per "~so A;J '°17-5 Test ( (o so..."°\ 

Cubic 3 & , '(7 -Yard 

Square J,oo 3-lS-Feet 

Square ) 1':)0 d ·, 1-) 
Feet 

Square 'J. 00 ~I oo Feet 

Square 1.2.2s- /7, 8'"o 
Feet 

SQFT 0,0.? °/ .-ao 

Linear I, 7 {' 3' t90 Foot 

Each /25 I <{v 
Square "-I. JS- -;., I) 

Feet 

Each J~o )-2.S-

J.2-~ 
:3. )-(' 

Square 
Feet 

Square 75r 2 5- I 2 - ~i) 
Feet 

Each '-I 5 (f;2 _)CJ 

Square 
\J fLvl'-lS 11,c},S 

Feet v5 ~~ s.-,,s o 
Square 3 r7S s-. is-Feet -
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Premium Time 
Rate 

5~. s-o 
i,;300 -

-
I, S-o 

3,oa 

t: oo 

3£-/,30 
I J, of/ 

S-, j'i) 

35'0 

I 3. 5£1 
3 C9z, 

f.y I)// 

I). o~ 
/ttP~ 
6\S.oo 

t 'lS' 

~ I 



/ Square / 
Feet 

I 
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,.... 

I Rolled Roofing I Square / ;}_ , SO 

/

r=~t--:F~eet t-:--+~ -L 
Roof Flashing Square 3 1 75, 

Feet 

3. 75 'f · 7S-

1;-_uP 7.-~ 
t Roof Seam Sealant 

Sheetrock 

Square 
Feet 

Square 
Feet 

Special Waste - 55 Drum 
Gallon 

Special Waste Ton 

Stucco Square 
Feet 

Thermal System Square 
Insulation (TSI) Feet 
Breachinl!!Boiler 

Transite Siding 

TST- Pipe 
Insulation 

Window 
Caulk/Glazing 

Total Abatement 
and Disposal 

(Straight Time 
Onlv) 

Square 
Feet 

Linear 
Foot 

Linear 
Foot 

~,7S- C/,,vt) 

3- )5 L(, 7) 

3 di -Oi> - ---, 

----
~, JS- 3 . uo 

c) '. 
75.,,, 37.oo 

c:2,oo 3 · Oo L-f_ oo 

3o -~o 
1 3. 25 d ,SO 

'-...___ 

----
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• Percentage markup on materials of net coast as reflected on supplier's invoices of parts, 
equipment, materials, and supplies must include all delivery charges. 

ao % 

• NOTE: Percentage mark-up for parts, equipment, materials, and supplies furnished by the 
subcontractors of the Successful Contractor shall be paid by the County only once and 

directly to the Successful Contractor and shall not exceed the percentage quoted above. The 
County will not pay rental fees to the successful contractor for equipment, parts and 

supplies that are customarily used in the operation of the Successful Contractor's business. 

• Delivery Charge, if any, for parts: $.--'l..,,5""-'0"-----------

• Hours of Service 

• Normal Service Days and Hours of availability: 

• W\ oJ.~ -Fr; J ~1, 7,.,; S f'~ 
• After Hours/Emergency Service Days and Hours of availability: 

• 
• Contact Information 

• Contact Number: ( t l (.,) / {g - tJ / / _5 

• EmailAddress: Sa..~~~eco~t-"'C--(DW" 
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IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
A RESOLUTION appointing Jon H. Otto to the Central City Economic Development Sales 
Tax District Board, to fill the unexpired term occasioned by the resignation of Melissa 
Patterson-Hazley, for a term to expire November 14, 2023. 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21369, August 14, 2023 
 
INTRODUCED BY Venessa Huskey, County Legislator 
 
 
WHEREAS, at the election held April 4, 2017, the voters of Kansas City, Missouri, 

approved the Central City Economic Development Sales Tax, Question 4, a retail sales 

tax of one-eighth (1/8) of one cent for the support of development and revitalization along 

the Prospect Avenue corridor; and, 

 

WHEREAS, approval of the question submitted authorized the creation of the Central City 

Economic Development Sales Tax District Board and the imposition of the sales tax; and, 

 

WHEREAS, section 67.1305, RSMo., the enabling legislation for the creation of the 

district, provides that the district be governed by a board whose membership is to include 

a member selected by a majority vote of the Legislature; and, 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution 20288 dated October 14, 2019, the Legislature did reappoint 

Melissa Patterson-Hazley to this board; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Ms. Patterson-Hazley was recently elected to the City Council of Kansas 

City, Missouri, and has submitted her resignation of this appointment; and, 
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WHEREAS, it is now appropriate that the Legislature adopt this Resolution appointing a 

member to fill the unexpired term of Ms. Patterson-Hazley; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri, that Jon H. 

Otto be and hereby is appointed to the Central City Economic Development Sales Tax 

District Board to fill the unexpired term occasioned by the resignation of Melissa 

Patterson-Hazley, for a term to expire November 14, 2023, under section 67.1305, RSMo. 
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Effective Date:  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by a 
majority of the Legislature. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
Certificate of Passage 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached resolution, Resolution No. 21369 of August 14, 
2023, was duly passed on ______________________, 2023 by the Jackson County 
Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
 
 Yeas _______________   Nays ______________ 
 
 
 Abstaining _________   Absent ____________ 
 
  
 
 
________________________   ____________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,042 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Resolution Res.Ord No.: 21369 

Sponsor(s): Venessa Huskey Legislature Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

A RESOLUTION appointing Jon H. Otto to the Central City Economic Development Sales Tax District 
Board, to fill the unexpired term occasioned by the resignation of Melissa Patterson-Hazley, for a term 
to expire November 14, 2023. 

Request Summary 

WHEREAS, at the election held April 4, 2017, the voters of Kansas City, Missouri, approved the Central 
City Economic Development Sales Tax, Question 4, a retail sales tax of one-eighth (1/8) of one cent for 
the support of development and revitalization along the Prospect Avenue corridor; and, 

WHEREAS, approval of the question submitted authorized the creation of the Central City Economic 
Development Sales Tax District Board and the imposition of the sales tax; and, 

WHEREAS, section 67.1305, RSMo., the enabling legislation for the creation of the district, provides that 
the district be governed by a board whose membership is to include a member selected by a majority 
vote of the Legislature; and, 

WHEREAS, by Resolution 20288 dated October 14, 2019, the Legislature did reappoint Melissa 
Patterson-Hazley to this board; and, 

WHEREAS, Ms. Patterson-Hazley was recently elected to the City Council of Kansas City and has 
submitted her resignation of this appointment; and, 

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate that the Legislature adopt this Resolution appointing a member to fill 
the unexpired term of Ms. Patterson-Hazley; now therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri, that Jon H. Otto be and hereby is 
appointed to the Central City Economic Development Sales Tax District Board to fill the unexpired term 
occasioned by the resignation of Melissa Patterson-Hazley, for a term to expire November 14, 2023, 
under section 67.1305, RSMo. 

Contact Information 

Department: Clerk of Legislature Submitted Date: 8/7/2023 

Name: Tedi Rowland Email: trowland@jacksongov.org 

Res. #21369
Sponsor: Venessa Huskey
Date: August 14, 2023
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Title: Deputy County Clerk Phone: 816-881-3246 

 

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $     

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

   !Unexpected End of 
Formula 

 

 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

20288 October 14, 2019 

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: not spending money 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2023 eRLA #1,042 Page 3 of 3 
 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

  

 

History 

Submitted by Clerk of Legislature requestor: Tedi Rowland on 8/7/2023. Comments: For August 14, 2023 
Agenda. Venessa Huskey is sponsoring. THR 
 
Approved by Department Approver Mary Jo Spino on 8/7/2023 4:13:54 PM. Comments:  mjs 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/8/2023 10:06:38 AM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Ikeela Alford on 8/8/2023 11:36:13 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver David B. Moyer on 8/8/2023 1:12:38 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/8/2023 1:42:02 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Jamesia Manning on 8/10/2023 12:27:00 PM. Comments: 
 

 



Councilwoman, 3rd District at Large

City Hall, 22nd Floor (816) 513-6512
414 E. 12th Street Fax: (816) 513-1612
Kansas City, MO 64106 Email: melissa.patterson-hazley@kcmo.org

Dear Mr. Chairman McGee,

I was recently elected to the City Council in Kansas City, Missouri and I will assume office on August
1, 2023. For this reason, I am resigning from the Central City Economic Development Board
effective July 31, 2023. It has been an absolute honor to serve as the CCED Vice-Chairwoman
since its inception in 2017. Over the course of just 6 years, I have been able to work with my
colleagues to facilitate over 414 million dollars in economic development investment in the central
city. Please see the attached Inception To Date report (generated December 2022) for more details
about the ongoing success of CCED.

I am thrilled to be joining the City Council and intend to continue my staunch support of CCED in my
new leadership role.

Please express my sincere thanks to all Jackson County legislators and County Executive Frank
White for allowing me the opportunity to serve our community in an impactful way.

With gratitude,

Melissa Patterson Hazley

mailto:melissa.patterson-hazley@kcmo.org
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LEGAL 
EXPERIENCE 

EVERGY, INC., Kansas City, Missouri 
Director, Corporate Counsel 
• Provide legal advice with respect to securities (Securities Exchange Act / Securities Act), 

finance, real estate, and corporate transactions, including assessing and advising on current 
and future business structures and legal entities. 

• Assist with securities law reporting and compliance; capital market activities; negotiation 
and administration of credit facilities, commercial paper programs and other financing 
arrangements.

• Support business development and venture capital activities; merger and acquisition 
activity, as well as asset acquisitions and dispositions; and state and federal regulatory 
matters related to financing and governance. 

• Assist with corporate governance matters, including preparing and reviewing board 
communications and board and board committee materials and minutes, and playing a role 
in the company’s annual shareholder meeting, including proxy statement preparation and 
related corporate governance research, advocacy, and outreach. 

• Perform special projects and such other transactional matters.

2022 - 
PRESENT 

BRYAN CAVE LEIGHTON PAISNER, LLP, Kansas City, Missouri 
Attorney 
Practice Areas: Structured Finance   
• Practice focuses on real estate development and finance using traditional bank

financing, municipal bond financing, and complex economic development
incentives including tax increment financing, sale-leaseback transactions, and tax
abatement and exemptions.

• Negotiate, draft, revise, and amend contracts, loan documents, resolutions, and
agreements in connection with various complex financing transactions
representing both borrowers and lenders.

• Counsel to CMBS lenders and servicers in connection with securitized commercial
mortgage loan transactions with an emphasis on defeasances, originations, and
other servicing and consent matters.

• Conduct research and draft memoranda on various issues of real estate finance,
equipment finance, municipal law, and creditors’ rights.

• Recognized by The Best Lawyers in America: Ones to Watch 2021 Edition. The
Best Lawyers in America is the oldest lawyer-rating publication in the U.S. and
selection is based on a peer-review survey in which leading lawyers cast votes on
the legal abilities of others in their specialties.

2019 - 2022 

POLSINELLI P.C., Kansas City, Missouri 
Attorney 
Practice Areas: Financial Services, Real Estate Development, and Capital Markets  
• Practice centered on real estate development and finance using tax credit finance,

municipal bond finance, and complex economic development incentives including
tax increment financing, STAR bonds, and real and personal property tax
exemptions.

• Real estate development practice included assisting developers with property
purchases and sales and title, zoning and survey matters in connection with property
development.

• Represented developers, lenders, syndicators, and equity investors in transactions
involving low-income housing tax credits, historic tax credits, and new market tax
credits.

2010 - 2019 
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• Served as bond counsel, disclosure counsel, issuer’s counsel, and underwriter’s 
counsel in connection with a variety of public financing transactions including 
governmental, public power, airport and other transportation, housing tax credit 
bonds and bonds issued for health care organizations and other non-profit 
organizations.  

• Negotiate, draft, revise, and amend contracts, loan documents, resolutions, 
partnership agreements, and corporate by-laws in connection with various 
financing and defeasance transactions. 

 
OTHER 
PROFESSIONAL 
EXPERIENCE 

SWISS REINSURANCE, Overland Park, Kansas 
Actuarial Analyst 
• Managed quarterly loss reporting process, analyzed statistical loss data and 

communicated variances, and constructed exhibits to forecast loss reserves. 
• Awarded Global Achievement Award for superior effort in redesigning and 

implementing the Actual vs. Expected database and reports, March 2005. 
 

2002 - 2010 

 GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL, Stamford, Connecticut; Raleigh, North Carolina; Overland 
Park, Kansas  
Information Management Leadership Program - Systems Analyst 
• IT project management training program consisting of four, six-month rotations in areas of 

e-Business, data management, six-sigma, and system security. 
• Worked closely with internal clients to examine business models and design appropriate IT 

solutions to improve business efficiency and productivity. 
 

2000 - 2002 

 LOCKHEED MARTIN - SPACE MISSION SYSTEMS & SERVICES, Houston, Texas 
Quality Control Analyst  
• Developed and analyzed Metrics reporting processes to ensure software implementation 

according to project and contract requirements.  
 

1998 - 2000 

OTHER LEGAL 
EXPERIENCE 

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT, WESTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI, Kansas 
City, Missouri  
Bankruptcy Judicial Intern for the Honorable Judge Jerry W. Venters  
• Reviewed motions, researched case law, and drafted legal opinions and memoranda. 
 

2009 

 MISSOURI COURT OF APPEALS, WESTERN DISTRICT, Kansas City, Missouri  
Law Clerk for the Honorable Judge Thomas H. Newton  
• Reviewed motions, researched relevant case law, and drafted legal opinions.  
 

2007 
 

EDUCATION 
 
Honors and 
Activities: 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI – KANSAS CITY SCHOOL OF LAW, Kansas City, Missouri 
Juris Doctor 
• UMKC Law Review - Literary Editor, Vice President - Black Law Students Association, 

Jackson County Bar Association Judge Kit Carson Roque Jr. Scholarship recipient; Law 
School Emissary 

 

2010 
 
 

 
 
Honors and 
Activities: 

CLARK ATLANTA UNIVERSITY, Atlanta, Georgia 
Bachelor of Science – Mathematics 
• Dean’s List, Mathematical Association of America, Varsity Baseball 
 

1998 
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BAR 
ADMISSIONS 
 

• Missouri; Kansas;  
• U.S. District Court - Western District of Missouri; and U.S. Tax Court 

 

PROFESSIONAL 
MEMBERSHIP  
& ACTIVITIES 

• Missouri Bar Association 
• Kansas Bar Association 
• National Association of Bond Lawyers 
• Kansas City Metropolitan Bar Association  
• American Bar Association 
• Jackson County Bar Association 
• Greater Kansas City Chamber of Commerce 
• Centurions Leadership Program – Apex Cohort, Class of 2022  

 

 

COMMUNITY 
ACTIVITIES 

• Minddrive – Board of Directors, 2022-Present 
• Missouri Charter Public School Association – Board of Directors, 2021-Present 
• Industrial Development Authority – Board of Directors, 2016-Present 
• Child Protection Center – Board of Directors, 2015-Present 
• University Health (f/k/a Truman Medical Center) – Board of Directors, 2016-Present 
• UMKC Law Alumni Association – Board of Directors, 2017-Present 
• Urban Land Institute, Kansas City – Advisory Board Member, 2018-Present 
• Academie Lafayette Charter School – Board of Directors, President, 2010-2022 
• Blue Hills Community Services – Board of Directors, 2015-2016 
• Legal Aid of Western Missouri – Volunteer Attorney, 2010 
• Habitat for Humanity – Volunteer, 2003-2007 
• United Way Community Service – Volunteer and Donor, 2000-2006 
• YouthFriends of Kansas City – Tutor & Mentor, 2000-2004 
• Niles Home for Children – Volunteer, 2001-2002 
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DEAL SHEET 
Structured Finance Transactions 
 

• Served as outside counsel to the Tax Increment Financing Commission of Kansas City, Missouri in 
connection with structuring and documenting development and public infrastructure projects within Kansas 
City, Missouri. 

• Represented one of the nation’s largest dairy cooperatives in connection with its purchase of approximately 
$433 million in assets from a large milk processor including plants, rolling stock, and other equipment. 

• Represented a developer in connection with development and construction of a mixed use commercial 
project located in downtown Kansas City, Kansas consisting of residential housing, upgraded conference 
center facilities, and commercial and service-based amenities including retail space and an athletic field. 

 
Tax Credit Finance Transactions 

• Represented the affordable housing division of a large national banking association in connection with the 
disposition of interests in over 350 Low Income Housing Tax Credit projects located in 35 states and the 
redemption of over 40 fund limited partner interests from large national institutional investors. 

• Served as counsel to an independent community development entity in 12 new projects totaling more than 
$100 million in Native American communities using New Market Tax Credit financing. 

• Served as developer’s counsel in connection with redevelopment of an elementary school into a 60 unit 
senior housing apartment located in Chicago, Illinois using Low Income Housing Tax Credit financing, 
Historic Tax Credit financing and Chicago Donation Tax Credits. 

• Served as developer’s counsel in connection with a multi-phase senior housing project located in North 
Kansas City, Missouri using Low Income Housing Tax Credit financing. 

• Served as nonprofit developer’s counsel in the closing of a $13 million affordable family development in 
the urban core of Kansas City, Missouri using Low Income Housing Tax Credit financing. 

• Served as nonprofit developer’s counsel in the closing and development of a $5 million low-income, senior 
housing apartment complex in Kansas City, Kansas using Federal and state Historic Tax Credits and Low 
Income Housing Tax Credit financing. 

• Served as developer’s counsel in the closing of a multiple HUD 221(d)(4) affordable family developments 
in Oklahoma and Arkansas using 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credit financing. 

• Counsel to tax credit syndicator in syndication of more than $8 million in Low Income Housing Tax Credits 
in Jackson, Mississippi. 

• Represented the investor in connection with financing the construction of a charter school located in central 
Kansas City, Missouri using New Market Tax Credit financing. 

• Served as counsel to a regional developer in transforming a dilapidated historic building in the central core 
of Wichita, Kansas into a boutique hotel using Federal and state Historic Tax Credits. 

• Served as counsel to a developer in a complex and highly structured “twin” transaction located in downtown 
Kansas City, Missouri involving New Market Tax Credits and Federal Rehabilitation Tax Credits, as well 
as state Historic Tax Credits. 

• Advised a third-party lender in a New Markets Tax Credit transaction where the lender acted as both a 
“leverage” lender and a mortgage lender in a transaction involving multiple loans and borrowers. 

Bond Financing Transactions 

• Served as underwriter’s counsel to a multinational financial services company in connection with the 
issuance of a variety of bond, note and other municipal obligations, including certificates of participation, 
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lease revenue bonds, industrial development revenue bonds, tax and revenue anticipation notes, general 
obligation bonds, water, sewer and transportation revenue bonds, special tax bonds and special facility 
bonds. 

• Served as disclosure counsel to Los Angeles, San Diego and Ontario International Airports in connection 
with over $6 billion of public debt offerings to build and refurbish airport terminals and facilities. 

• Represented Los Angeles World Airports as disclosure counsel and bond counsel in over $4 billion of bonds 
issued to finance capital projects, including construction of various elements of the Bradley West Terminal 
Project, construction of the Central Utility Plant Project and other capital improvement projects. 

• Served as disclosure counsel to the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority for bond issuances related 
to the development and financing of the Alameda Corridor, a 20-mile “freeway” for freight trains. 

• Served as counsel to Orange County, California related to its continuing disclosure obligations in 
connection with the SEC’s Municipalities Continuing Disclosure Cooperation Initiative. 

• Served as co-bond counsel to the San Diego Water Authority in connection with the partial redemption of 
the California Pollution Control Financing Authority Water Furnishing Revenue Bonds related to the 
completion of the San Diego County Water Authority Desalination Pipeline Project.  

• Served as bond counsel and disclosure counsel to the Harbor Department of the Port of Long Beach in 
connection with the issuance of its Harbor Revenue Refunding Bonds related to terminal development 
projects and related facilities improvements. 

• Served as co-bond counsel to the St. Louis Municipal Finance Corporation in connection with the issuance 
of its Police Capital Improvement Sales Tax Leasehold Refunding Revenue Bonds and its Juvenile 
Detention Center Leasehold Refunding Revenue Bonds related to the construction of the St. Louis police 
department headquarters and police academy and construction of the City of St. Louis juvenile detention 
center and related improvements. 

• Member of a team acting as bond counsel and borrower’s counsel on the issuance of more than $800 million 
of tax-exempt bonds, through three different issuers, including fixed rate, variable rate, and direct purchase 
components for a national health care provider. 

• Served as borrower’s counsel in a $30 million bond issuance for a 156-bed acute care hospital. 

Other Transactions 

• Represented multiple national banking associations as loan servicers in the specialized area of loan 
defeasance of securitized loans. Assisted with over 600 transactions involving the defeasance of multi-
million dollar loans, secured by secured by all types of real property, including hotels, shopping centers, 
offices, industrial, mixed use, manufactured homes, apartments, and condominiums. 

• Served as lender’s counsel to a large nonprofit health care system in connection with the syndication of 
various medical office building and nonprofit housing projects totaling over $350 million. 

• Represented a master developer in connection with public/private development of a mixed-use commercial 
development on an approximately 55 acre tract of land in North Kansas City, Missouri using various 
economic development incentive programs including industrial development bonds, tax increment 
financing, community improvement district, and property assessment clean energy financing. 

 



IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
A RESOLUTION recognizing Westside Housing Organization, Inc., on the occasion of its 
Fiftieth Anniversary celebration. 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21370, August 14, 2023 
 
INTRODUCED BY Manuel Abarca IV, DaRon McGee, Venessa Huskey, Donna Peyton, 

Charlie Franklin, Jalen Anderson and Megan L. Marshall, County 
Legislators 

 
 
WHEREAS, Westside Housing Organization, Inc., a private, not-for-profit corporation with 

the mission to build community at the intersection of housing, health, energy, and equity, 

was founded in 1973 by passionate neighborhood residents who wanted the City of 

Kansas City, Missouri to improve the physical conditions of their neighborhood and save 

houses from destruction by highway construction; and, 

 

WHEREAS, driven by this collective vision, Westside Housing Organization emerged as 

a beacon of hope and resilience, and has since remained unwavering in its commitment 

to community development; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Westside Housing Organization, Inc. has evolved into one of the most 

esteemed community development corporations (CDC) within Kansas City, Missouri, 

reflecting a legacy of more than four decades of collaboration and transformative impact; 

and, 

 

 

 

 



 

2 
 

WHEREAS, deeply rooted in the Westside neighborhood, Westside Housing 

Organization has exemplified a steadfast dedication to serving diverse Kansas City 

metropolitan area neighborhoods, embracing the unique essence of each community 

while forging bonds of unity and support; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Westside Housing Organization's advocacy for safe and healthy homes is 

evident through its home repair grants and construction services, safeguarding families 

and seniors from financial crises while fortifying the foundations of their well-being; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the community building and engagement initiatives spearheaded by 

Westside Housing Organization have empowered neighbors to champion investments 

and enhancements in their communities, nurturing a sense of belonging and shared 

purpose that reverberates throughout the entire Kansas City metro area; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri that the 

Legislature proudly commemorates the Fiftieth Anniversary of Westside Housing 

Organization, Inc., and extends its gratitude to the dedicated board of directors, visionary 

leadership, committed staff, and the countless individuals who have rallied together to 

shape a legacy of hope, progress, and lasting positive change. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

Effective Date:  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by a 
majority of the Legislature. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________  
County Counselor 
 
 
Certificate of Passage 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached resolution, Resolution No. 21370 of August 14, 
2023, was duly passed on ______________________, 2023 by the Jackson County 
Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
 
 Yeas _______________   Nays ______________ 
 
 
 Abstaining _________   Absent ____________ 
 
  
 
 
________________________   ____________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 



IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
A RESOLUTION recognizing Saint Mary’s Catholic Church of Independence, Missouri 
on the occasion of its Bicentennial Anniversary celebration to be held August 15, 2023. 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21371, August 14, 2023 
 
 
INTRODUCED BY Sean E. Smith, Charlie Franklin, Donna Peyton, and DaRon McGee, 

County Legislators 
 
 
WHEREAS, in the year 1823, Saint Mary's Catholic Church was established in the heart 

of Independence, Missouri, as a testament to the enduring spirit of Catholic pioneers and 

missionaries; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Saint Mary's Catholic Church proudly stands as the oldest parish within the 

Diocese of Kansas City-Saint Joseph, a storied institution that has navigated the currents 

of history with unwavering devotion; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Saint Mary's Catholic Church has weathered uprisings among settlers of 

varying faiths, enduring raids by outlaws, and even standing resilient amidst the 

tumultuous trials of the Civil War; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the founding settlers of Saint Mary's Catholic Church, in the face of 

adversities and challenges, demonstrated a remarkable steadfastness in their faith, laying 

the foundation for an enduring legacy of spiritual commitment and community unity; and, 

 



 

2 
 

WHEREAS, the cornerstone of the current location of Saint Mary's Catholic Church was 

placed in 1864, coinciding with the inaugural journey of the first train from Kansas City to 

Independence, carrying Fr. Bernard Donnelly, the parish's inaugural pastor; and, 

 

WHEREAS, two hundred years later, Saint Mary's Catholic Church continues to grace 

the corner of College and Liberty Streets in Independence, Missouri with a historical 

marker identifying its rich past; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Saint Mary's Catholic Church is a living embodiment of faith and community, 

under the guidance of its current pastor, Rev. Kendall Ketterlin, striving to create a future 

of hope, unity, and shared purpose; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Bicentennial Anniversary of Saint Mary's Catholic, will be opened on the 

Feast of the Assumption, August 15, 2023, with a Mass celebrated by Bishop James V. 

Johnston, Jr., followed by a dinner and presentation; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri that the 

Legislature hereby extends its heartfelt congratulations to Saint Mary's Catholic Church 

on the joyous occasion of its Bicentennial Anniversary and extends best wishes on all of 

its future endeavors. 
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Effective Date:  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by a 
majority of the Legislature. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
Certificate of Passage 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached resolution, Resolution No. 21371 of August 14, 
2023, was duly passed on ______________________, 2023 by the Jackson County 
Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
 
 Yeas _______________   Nays ______________ 
 
 
 Abstaining _________   Absent ____________ 
 
  
 
 
________________________   ____________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 



IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
A RESOLUTION congratulating Raoul C. Stitt on the occasion of his retirement after 32 
years of service to the Jackson County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office. 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21372, August 14, 2023 
 
INTRODUCED BY Venessa Huskey, County Legislator 
 
 
WHEREAS, Raoul C. Stitt, a dedicated associate in the Prosecuting Attorney’s Office, is 

retiring after nearly 32 years of commendable service to Jackson County; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Raoul is the son of the Honorable Judge Charles L. Stitt and Katherine Stitt, 

and he shares a deep bond with his two brothers, Michael Stitt and Charles Stitt; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Raoul, a man of diverse talents, was in the music business as a drummer, a 

lighting technician, and even served as a roadie for a touring rock band, until he realized 

the importance of securing his future through education; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Raoul, at the age of thirty, pursued higher education at the University of 

Missouri – Kansas City (UMKC), and later attended UMKC School of Law, laying the 

foundation for his successful career; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Raoul began his tenure with the Jackson County Prosecuting Attorney's 

Office during his final year in law school, serving as an Intern in the Kansas City Drug 

Unit in February 1991, and subsequently joined as an Assistant Prosecuting Attorney 

upon passing the bar exam; and, 
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WHEREAS, from 1991 to 1993, Raoul served in various capacities, including the Kansas 

City Drug Unit, the Independence Drug Unit, and the Kansas City Warrant desk; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Raoul transferred to the Family Support Division on January 9, 1993, where 

he continued to serve as an Assistant Prosecuting Attorney in the Judicial Enforcement 

Unit; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Raoul's dedication and exceptional work were recognized when he was 

honored with the Family Support Employee of the Year Award twice, in 1995 and again 

in 2011, reflecting his profound impact on the well-being of families in Jackson County; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, Raoul displayed his legal prowess by handling appellate work for the Judicial 

Unit, conducting legal research, and by arguing cases before the Western District of the 

Missouri Court of Appeals and the Missouri Supreme Court; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Raoul's long and distinguished career in public service has been an integral 

part of the Jackson County Prosecuting Attorney's Office and Family Support Division, 

touching the lives of countless families and children in Jackson County; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Raoul's presence and camaraderie will be deeply missed by his coworkers, 

who extend their heartfelt appreciation for his tireless dedication and unwavering 

commitment to public service; now therefore, 
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BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri that the 

Legislature extends its heartfelt congratulations to Raoul C. Stitt on the occasion of his 

well-deserved retirement after 32 years of exceptional service to Jackson County and 

expresses its sincere gratitude for his significant contributions to the community. 

 

 
  



 

4 
 

Effective Date:  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by a 
majority of the Legislature. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
County Counselor 
 
 
Certificate of Passage 
 
 I hereby certify that the attached resolution, Resolution No. 21372 of August 14, 
2023, was duly passed on ______________________, 2023 by the Jackson County 
Legislature. The votes thereon were as follows: 
 
 
 
 Yeas _______________   Nays ______________ 
 
 
 Abstaining _________   Absent ____________ 
 
  
 
 
________________________   ____________________________ 
Date       Mary Jo Spino, Clerk of Legislature 
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